
Page 1 of 2 

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA  94604-2688 

(510) 464-6000 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING AND AGENDA 
BART POLICE CITIZEN REVIEW BOARD 

July 9, 2018 
 
A Meeting of the BART Police Citizen Review Board (BPCRB) will be held on Monday, July 09, 2018, at  
4:00 p.m. The Meeting shall consist of a simultaneous teleconference call at the following locations: 
 

 
 
 
AGENDA 
 

1. Call to Order. 
 

2. Call for Quorum. 
 

3. Pledge of Allegiance Recital. 
 

  4. 
  

5.  
 

 6. 
 
 
 

7. 
 

8.  
 

9. 
 
 

10. 
 
   11. 
 
   12. 
 
  
   13. 
 
 
 
 

Approval of Minutes of Prior Board Meeting. For Discussion and Action. 
 
Introduction of New BPCRB Member Pete Longmire and Oath of Office. 
 
Chief of Police’s Report. For Discussion and Action. 

a. BART Police Department (BPD) Monthly Report for May 2018 
b. Center for Policing Equity Report Status 

 
BPCRB Participation in BPD Commendation Process. For Discussion and Action. 
 
BPCRB Onboarding and Submitting Materials Status. For Discussion and Action. 
 
BPD Administrative Leave Process (Criteria for Returning an Officer to Full Duty Pending 
Completion of an Officer-Involved Shooting Investigation). For Discussion and Action. 
 
Use of Force Policy Training Status. For Discussion and Action. 
 
BPD Media Communications and Information Policy. For Discussion and Action. 
 
Independent Police Auditor’s Report. For Discussion and Action. 

a. Office of the Independent Police Auditor (OIPA) Monthly Report for June 2018 
 
General Discussion and Public Comment. Limited to 3 minutes per speaker.  
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the BPCRB on matters under their  
jurisdiction and not on the agenda). 
  
 

BART Board Room 
Kaiser Center 20th Street Mall – Third Floor 
2040 Webster Street 
Oakland, CA 94612 

  The Warner Library 
  Reserved Room (See Librarian for Room Location) 
121 North Broadway 
Tarrytown, NY 10591 



Page 2 of 2 

   14. 
 
 
 
   15. 

Closed Session. 
a. To Consider Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release in OIPA Case #17-42. 

Govt. Code §54957 
 

Adjournment. 
 
Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to this meeting, as there may 
be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses. 
 
BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals who are 
limited English proficient who wish to address Board matters. A request must be made within one and five days 
in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested. Please contact the Office of the District 
Secretary at (510) 464-6083 for information. 
 
BPCRB Meeting Agenda materials will be made available to the public at the meeting and may also be accessed 
and downloaded 72 hours prior to the meeting at http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/advisory/crb (click on 
“Agenda”). 
 
Pursuant to Govt. Code §54953.5, the audio recording of this open and public meeting shall be subject to 
inspection pursuant to the California Public Records Act (CPRA). Requests for information under the CPRA 
should be filed with the BART Office of the District Secretary. 
 
 

http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/advisory/crb


 

[1] 
 

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA  94604-2888 

 
BART Police Citizen Review Board  

Monday, June 11, 2018 
 

A regular meeting of the BART Police Citizen Review Board (BPCRB) was held on Monday, 
June 11, 2018 convening at 4:00 p.m. in the BART Board Room, 344 20th Street, Oakland, 
California. 
 
Members Present: Chairperson George Perezvelez, Vice Chairperson William White,  

Kenneth Loo, Les Mensinger, Aman Sebahtu, David Rizk, Cydia Garrett,  
and Richard Knowles. 

 
BART Staff: BART Police Department (BPD) Chief of Police Carlos Rojas, BPD Deputy 

Chief Lance Haight, BPD Deputy Chief Jeffrey Jennings, BPD Officer 
Stephen Christ, Independent Police Auditor Russell Bloom, Independent 
Police Investigator Patrick Caceres, Senior Administrative Analyst Sarah 
Celso, Senior Administrative Analyst LaTonia Peoples-Stokes, Interim 
District Secretary Patricia Williams, BPD Temporary Staff Assistant Sharon 
Kidd. 

 
Others Present:  BART Director Debora Allen, BART Director Robert Raburn, John Burris, 

KTVU News, Members of the Public. 
 
Agenda items discussed: 
 
1. Call to Order. 

The regular meeting was called to order at 4:02 p.m. by Chairperson George Perezvelez. 
 
2. Call for Quorum. 

Chairperson George Perezvelez, Vice Chairperson William White, Kenneth Loo,  
Cydia Garrett, Les Mensinger, and Richard Knowles were present, amounting to a 
quorum. 
 

3. Pledge of Allegiance Recital. 
The pledge of allegiance was recited. 

 
4. Approval of Minutes of Prior Board Meeting. For Discussion and Action. 

A motion to approve the minutes for the Prior Board Meeting was made by Mr. W. White 
and seconded by Mr. Mensinger. The motion passed with five in favor, zero against and 
one abstention. 
 

5. Presentation of Certificate of Appreciation to Cydia Garrett for Service as a 
BPCRB Member. 



 

[2] 
 

Chairperson Perezvelez announced that this will be Ms. Garrett’s last meeting as BPCRB 
Public-At-Large Member, and he expressed his appreciation for her service. 
 
Mr. Sebahtu entered the meeting at 4:06pm. 
 
Ms. Garrett shared her thoughts with the BPCRB. 
 
Mr. W. White expressed his appreciation for Ms. Garrett’s service. 
 
Mr. Mensinger expressed his appreciation for Ms. Garrett’s service. 
 

6. Chief of Police’s Report. For Discussion and Action. 
 

Mr. Rizk entered the meeting at 4:15pm. 
 
Chief Rojas expressed his appreciation to Ms. Garrett for her service. 
 

a. BPD Monthly Report for April 2018 
Chief Rojas presented the BPD Monthly Report for April 2018 and he answered 
questions from the BPCRB. 
 

b. Effect on Pending Internal Investigations on Promotional Opportunities for 
BPD Personnel 
Chief Rojas discussed this item and he answered questions from the BPCRB. 
 

c. Annual Use of Force Report 
Deputy Chief Haight discussed this item and he answered questions from the 
BPCRB. 
 
Mr. Bloom answered questions from the BPCRB. 
 
Deputy Chief Jennings answered questions from the BPCRB. 
 

7. Statements by BPCRB Public-At-Large Applicants. 
Chairperson Perezvelez called for statements by BPCRB Public-At-Large Applicants. 
None were present, and no statements were made. 
 

8. BPCRB Participation in BPD Commendation Process. For Discussion and Action. 
Chairperson Perezvelez postponed this agenda item for discussion at the next BPCRB 
meeting.  
 
The BPCRB discussed this item. 
 
 Mr. Bloom addressed the BPCRB regarding Agenda Item #7 per the request of Mr. Rizk. 
 



 

[3] 
 

9. BPCRB Onboarding and Training Syllabus Subcommittee Status. For Discussion 
and Action. 
Chairperson Perezvelez updated the BPCRB on the status of this item. The subcommittee 
will provide an update at a future BPCRB meeting. 
 
Mr. Rizk discussed this item. 
 

10. BPD Administrative Leave Process (Criteria for Returning an Officer to Full Duty 
Pending Completion of an Officer-Involved Shooting Investigation.) For Discussion 
and Action. 
Chairperson Perezvelez asked BPD for an explanation regarding the BPD Administrative 
Leave Process.  
 
Deputy Chief Jennings addressed the BPCRB. 
 
This item will be placed on the agenda for the next BPCRB meeting. 
 

11. Use of Force Policy Training Status. For Discussion and Action. 
Deputy Chief Haight addressed the BPCRB. 
 
This item will be placed on the agenda for the next BPCRB meeting. 
 
Chief Rojas addressed the BPCRB regarding agenda item #10. 
 
Deputy Chief Jennings addressed the BPCRB regarding agenda item #10. 
 
Mr. Rizk discussed agenda item #10. 
 
Chairperson Perezvelez discussed agenda item #10. 
 
Mr. Mensinger discussed agenda item #10. 
 
Ms. Garrett discussed agenda item #10. 
 

12. BPD Media Communications and Information Policy. For Discussion and Action. 
Chairperson Perezvelez called for this item to be skipped and to be placed on the agenda 
for the next BPCRB meeting. 
 
The BPCRB discussed this item. 
 
A motion to create a subcommittee to review the BPD Media Communications and 
Information Policy #346 was made by Mr. Rizk and seconded by Mr. Loo. The motion 
passed with seven in favor, zero against and one abstention. 
 
Mr. Loo requested to be on the subcommittee. Other interested BPCRB Members are to 
contact Chairperson Perezvelez. 



 

[4] 
 

13. BPCRB Training Program. (The curriculum to be addressed will not satisfy AB 
1234 training requirements for legislative body members.) 

a. Beat Review and Public Safety Outlook 
Deputy Chief Haight made a presentation on BPD’s Beat Review and Public 
Safety Outlook and he answered questions from the BPCRB. 
 

14. Independent Police Auditor’s Report. For Discussion and Action. 
a. OIPA’s Monthly Reports for April and May 2018 

Mr. Bloom presented the OIPA Monthly Reports for April and May 2018 and he 
answered questions from the BPCRB.  
 
Chief Rojas addressed the BPCRB. 
 

15. General Discussion and Public Comment. Limited to 3 minutes per speaker.  
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the BPCRB on matters under 
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda.) 
Chairperson Perezvelez called for Public Comment. The following individuals addressed  
the BPCRB regarding the BPD Officer-Involved Shooting on January 3, 2018: 
 
Asale Chandler 
Iysis Levi 
Kalee Jefferson 
Nahlea Watkins 
Lonnie Monroe 
 
A motion to extend the meeting to 6:15 p.m. was made by Mr. W. White and it was 
seconded by Mr. Mensinger. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Public comment continued with statements from the following individuals: 
 
Afiyah Chambers 
Karim Mayfield 
 
A motion to extend the meeting to 6:30 p.m. was made by Mr. W. White and it was  
seconded by Mr. Loo. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Public comment continued with statements from the following individual: 
 
Yolanda Banks-Reed 
 
A motion to extend the meeting to 6:45 p.m. was made by Mr. Mensinger and was 
seconded by Mr. W. White. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
The meeting convened into closed session at 6:26 p.m. 
 

16. Closed Session. 



 

[5] 
 

a. To Consider Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release in Office of the 
Independent Police Auditor Case #17-39. Gov. Code §54957 

 
A motion to extend the meeting to 7:00 p.m. was made by Mr. W. White and seconded 
by Chairperson Perezvelez. The motion passed with six in favor, one against and one 
abstention. 
 

b. To Consider Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release in Office of the 
Independent Police Auditor Case #17-42. Gov. Code §54957 
OIPA Case #17-42 will be placed on the agenda for the next BPCRB meeting. 

 
 Ms. Garrett exited the meeting at 6:52 p.m. 
 
 Mr. Loo exited the meeting at 6:55 p.m. 
 
 The BPCRB reconvened in open session at 6:56 p.m. 
 
 Chairperson Perezvelez announced the votes taken during the closed session with regard  

to agenda item #16a. The BPCRB voted separately on the allegations for this case. With 
regard to allegation #1, the BPCRB voted to accept the finding reached by OIPA with 
seven votes in favor, zero against and zero abstentions. With regard to allegation #2, the 
BPCRB voted to accept the finding reached by OIPA with four in favor by Mr. Loo, 
Chairperson Perezvelez, Mr. Rizk and Mr. Knowles, three against by Mr. W. White,  
Mr. Mensinger and Mr. Sebahtu and zero abstentions. With regard to allegation #3, the 
BPCRB voted to accept the finding reached by OIPA with seven in favor, zero against 
and zero abstentions. 

 
17. Adjournment. 

A motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Mr. W. White and it was seconded by Mr. 
Mensinger. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 6:57 p.m. 



BART POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 

 

 

May 2018 
MONTHLY REPORT 



Responsible
01 – Industrial Leave* SSD – J. Morgan
02 – Vacancy SSD – F. Cheung
03 – Diversity SSD – F. Cheung
04 – Training PS&T – P. Kwon
05 – Use of Force PS&T – K. Franklin
06 – Citizen Complaints PS&T – K. Franklin
07 – Internal Affairs Log PS&T – K. Franklin
08 – Performance Measures SSD – K. Dam
09 – Enforcement Contacts SSD – K. Dam
10 – Parking Enforcement POD – J. DeVera
11 – Warrant Arrests SSD – K. Dam
12 – Detectives Assignments SSD – J. Power
13 – Detectives Closure Rate SSD – J. Power
14 – Assembly Bill 716 POD – M. Williamson
15 – Absence Overview SSD – C. Vogan
16 – Overtime SSD – F. Cheung
17 – Communications Center SSD – G. Hesson
18 – BART Watch SSD – C. Vogan

*Not included in Year-End or Monthly BPCRB Reports

BPD Monthly Reports

May 2018
Report

X0A0T



BART Police Department (07) Staffing Status As of: 06/11/18
Vacancy Factor: 0.0

Pos'n FY18 As of On Leave
Code Job Title Adopted Reclass 06/11/18 Filled or TMD Vacant

027 Community Service Officer 63         63           46         5           17           

045 Police Admin Specialist 12         12           10         -        2            

048 Police Dispatcher 16         16           15         1           1            

098 Revenue Protection Guard 19         19           16         1           3            Notes

836 Police Sup.//CAD/RMS Admin*** 6            6             6           -        -        

778 Police Officer 63          63           60         6           3            Add people on TMD to the filled position

     In Academy = 6 -         
     Field Training = 2 -        EBART - Ofc 5, CSO 4

788 Senior Police Officer 104        104         82         5           22          

798 Master Police Officer 14         14           10         -        4            Fare Evasion - 6 CSOs, 1 PAS

838 Police Sergeant 34         34           29         4           5            

888 Police Lieutenant 10         10           10         1           -        

898 Police Deputy Chief 3            3             3           -         

980 Police Chief 1           1             1           -        
-        

SF100 Mgr of Security Programs** 1           1             -        1            

000065 Emergency Preparedness Mgr. 1           1             1           -        -        

000074 Crisis Outreach Coordinator 1           1             1           -        

000081 Accreditation Manager 1           1             1           -        -        

AF200 Sr. Administrative Analyst 1            1             1           -        

DEPARTMENT TOTAL 350       -        350         292       23         58          

Note: BART Police Department has 17 Attrition Float positions, of which 10 are Police Officers (778),
         5 are Community Service Officers (027) and 2 are Police Dispatchers (048).
 

> "On Leave" category does not include personnel on Admin Leave.
> Mgr of Security Programs position is currently filled by a Police Lieutenant**
 

 
 

N
O

N
-S

W
O

R
N

 
(R

ep
)

N
on

-S
w

or
n 

   
   

  
(N

on
-R

ep
)

S
W

O
R

N

001



+

White 37% 107 43% 77 31% 30
Black 21% 62 21% 40 23% 22
Asian 21% 62 16% 33 30% 29
Hispanic 19% 56 18% 42 14% 14
American/ Indian 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0
Native Hawaiian/Pac Island 1% 5 2% 3 2% 2

Total: 100% 292 100% 195 100% 97

Female 22% 63 10% 20 46% 45
Male 78% 227 90% 175 54% 52

Total: 100% 290 100% 195 100% 97

Sworn 67% 195
Civilian 33% 97

Total: 100% 292

BART PD DIVERSITY MONTHLY REPORT 
As of 6/11/18

ETHNICITY

DEMOGRAPHIC

CLASSIFICATION

S

S C

C

002



CRISIS INTERVENTION TRAINING AS OF:  June 1, 2018

E
lig

ib
le

 to
 

A
tt

en
d 

T
ra

in
in

g

(N
ot

 in
 

A
ca

de
m

y 
or

 
Fi

el
d 

T
ra

in
in

g)

Chief 1 1 0 1 0 0% 0%
Deputy Chiefs 3 3 0 3 3 100% 100%
Lieutenants 10 9 1 9 9 100% 100%
Sergeants 34 28 6 28 28 100% 100%
Officers 181 148 33 136 135 91% 99%
Dispatchers 16 15 1 12 12 80% 100%
Dispatch Supervisors 2 2 0 2 2 100% 100%
CSOs 63 45 18 44 44 98% 100%
Crisis Outreach 
Coordinator 1 1 0 1 1 100% 100%

Total 311 252 59 236 234 93% 99%
Personnel Positions that are not designated to attend CIT Training

Total Filled Vacant

Revenue Protection 
Guards 19 16 3

Police Administrative 
Specialists 12 10 2

Police Sup./CAD RMS 
Admin 4 4 0

Civilian 
Managers/Analyst 3 3 0

Sub Total 38 33 5

TOTAL PERSONNEL 349 285 64

T
ot

al
 o

f F
ill

ed
 P

os
iti

on
s T

ra
in

ed
 

Personnel 
Positions

T
ot

al
 P

os
iti

on
s

Fi
lle

d 
Po

si
tio

ns

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f T
ot

al
 F

ill
ed

 
Po

si
tio

ns
 T

ra
in

ed

V
ac

an
t P

os
iti

on
s

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f E
lig

ib
le

 F
ill

ed
 

Po
si

tio
ns

 T
ra

in
ed

003



FAIR AND IMPARTIAL / BIASED BASED TRAINING AS OF June 1, 2018

Chief 1 1 0 1 0 0.0% 0.0%
Deputy Chiefs 3 3 0 3 3 100.0% 100.0%
Lieutenants 10 9 1 9 9 100.0% 100.0%
Sergeants 34 28 6 28 28 100.0% 100.0%
Officers 181 148 33 142 142 95.9% 100.0%
CSOs 63 45 18 43 40 88.9% 93.0%
Total 292 234 58 226 222 94.9% 98.2%
Personnel Positions that are not designated to attend FAIR AND IMPARTIAL Training

Total Filled Vacant
Dispatchers 16 15 1
Dispatch Supervisors 2 2 0
Crisis Outreach 
Coordinator 1 1 0

Revenue Protection 
Guards 19 16 3

Police Administrative 
Specialists 12 10 2

Police Sup./CAD RMS 
Admin 4 4 0

Civilian 
Managers/Analyst 3 3 0

Sub Total 57 51 6

TOTAL PERSONNEL 349 285 64

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f E
lig

ib
le

 F
ill

ed
 P

os
iti

on
s

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f T
ot

al
 F

ill
ed

 P
os

iti
on

s 
Tr

ai
ne

d

V
ac

an
t P

os
iti

on
s

Personnel 
Positions

T
ot

al
 P

os
iti

on
s

Fi
lle

d 
Po

si
tio

ns

El
ig

ib
le

 to
 A

tt
en

d 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
  (

N
ot

 in
 A

ca
de

m
y 

or
 F

ie
ld

 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
)

To
ta

l o
f F

ill
ed

 P
os

iti
on

s T
ra

in
ed

 

004



POLICE ROADWAY PROTECTION TRAINING AS OF:  June 1, 2018

Chief 1 1 0 1 0 0.0% 0.0%
Deputy Chiefs 3 3 0 3 3 100.0% 100.0%
Lieutenants 10 9 1 9 9 100.0% 100.0%
Sergeants 34 28 6 28 28 100% 100.0%
Officers 181 148 33 143 143 96.6% 100.0%
CSOs-Not Required 63 45 18 43 40 88.9% 93.0%
Total 292 234 58 227 223 95.3% 98.2%
Personnel Positions that are not REQUIRED to attend Police Roadway Protection Training

Total Filled Vacant
CSOs 63 45 18
Dispatchers 16 15 1

Dispatch Supervisors 2 2 0

Crisis Outreach 
Coordinator 1 1 0

Revenue Protection 
Guards 19 16 3

Police Administrative 
Specialists 12 10 2

Police Sup./CAD RMS 
Admin 4 4 0

Civilian 
Managers/Analyst 3 3 0

Sub Total 120 96 24
TOTAL PERSONNEL 412 330 82

El
ig

ib
le

 to
 A

tt
en

d 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
  (

N
ot

 in
 A

ca
de

m
y,

  F
TO

, o
r 

IN
D

/L
ea

ve
)Fi

lle
d 

Po
si

tio
ns

V
ac

an
t P

os
iti

on
s

Personnel 
Positions

T
ot

al
 P

os
iti

on
s

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f E
lig

ib
le

 F
ill

ed
 P

os
iti

on
s

To
ta

l o
f F

ill
ed

 P
os

iti
on

s T
ra

in
ed

 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f T
ot

al
 F

ill
ed

 P
os

iti
on

s 
Tr

ai
ne

d

005



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
2018 20 10 15 9 11 65

YTD 2018 20 30 45 54 65

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
2017 29 32 30 35 27 35 24 20 27 20 11 15 305

YTD 2017 29 61 91 126 153 188 212 232 259 279 290 305

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
2016 37 24 32 13 24 31 30 20 14 20 29 22 296

YTD 2016 37 61 93 106 130 161 191 211 225 245 274 296

Use of Force Incidents - 2017

Use of Force Incidents - 2016

Use of Force Incidents - 2018
006



0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

UOF Incidents

2016 2017 2018

007



0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

UOF Year-to-Date Monthly Comparison

2016 2017 2018

008



Force Options Used (Incident Count), May 2018 

 

 

*Each incident could contain more than one force option used.  This pie chart reflects 
the most significant force option used per incident. 

 

Batons & Impact 
Weapons, 1, 9%

Personal Body 
Weapons, 1, 9%

Dynamic 
Takedown, 1, 9%

Firearm Draw/Point, 4, 37% Control 
Holds/Pressure 

Point, 2, 18%

Bodyweight, 2, 
18%

FORCE OPTIONS USED (INCIDENT COUNT MAY 2018)

009



Types of Force Used, May 2018 (Overall Total) 

0 

 

*Some incidents involved the use of multiple force options.  If two officers involved in the 
same incident used the same force option, this data would reflect both officers.  As an 
example, if two officers in the same incident used control holds, this data would reflect 
two separate control holds. 

Take Down 
(Dynamic), 4, 11%

Firearm Draw/Point, 6, 17% Control Holds, 8, 23%

Personal Body 
Weapons, 2, 6%

Take Down (Non-
Dynamic), 4, 11%

Grab, 2, 6%Pressure 
Point, 1, 3%

Body Weight , 
4, 11%Push, 1, 3%

De-escalation (Verbal), 2, 6%

Baton, 1, 3%

FORCE OPTIONS USED IN MAY 2018 (OVERALL TOTAL)

010



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
2018 5 10 4 11 5 35

YTD 2018 5 15 19 30 35

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
2017 6 6 7 7 13 8 9 12 10 10 7 7 102

YTD 2017 6 12 19 26 39 47 56 68 78 88 95 102

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
2016 10 3 13 7 7 10 6 9 8 7 8 6 94

YTD 2016 10 13 26 33 40 50 56 65 73 80 88 94

Citizen Complaints - 2017

Citizen Complaints - 2016

Citizen Complaints - 2018
011



0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Citizen Complaints

2016 2017 2018

012



0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Citizen Complaints Year-to-Date Monthly Comparison

2016 2017 2018

013



Complaints Received (Incident Count), May 2018 

 

 

Each incident could contain more than one allegation. This pie chart reflects the most 
significant allegation per incident.   

Bias-Based 
Policing, 1, 20%

Conduct Unbecoming, 4, 80%

COMPLAINTS RECEIVED (INCIDENT COUNT), MAY 2018

014



IA
CASE # OCC'D REC'D ALLEGATION FINDING INVESTIGATOR DUE DATE

IA2016-071 07/29/16 7/29/2016 Force, Bias, Arrest Lt. Kwon 12/28/16
Force, Bias, Arrest (Tolled) 01/27/17
Force, Bias, Arrest
Force, Bias, Arrest

IA2017-040 1/31/2017 5/18/2017 Force Sgt. Togonon 10/17/2017
Force Tolled

IA2017-081 8/31/2017 8/31/2017 CUBO Sgt. T. Salas 1/30/2018 Submitted L21
CUBO
CUBO

IA2017-093 10/4/2017 10/4/2017 Force Admin Sgt. T. Salas 3/5/2018 Submitted L21

IA2017-095 10/13/2017 10/18/2017 Peformance of duty Sgt. T. Salas 4/10/2018
Force/Search

IA2017-096 10/20/2017 10/23/2017 Bias Based Policing Sgt.T. Salas 3/24/2018
Sgt. Fueng

IA2017-097 10/13/2017 10/18/2017 CUBO Deferred to 
OIPA #17-39 Sgt. Togonon 3/19/2018

Bias-Based Policing

IA2017-101 10/30/2017 10/31/2017 Performance of Duty Sgt. T. Salas 3/22/2018 Submitted L21

IA2017-105 11/15/2017 11/16/2017 Performance of Duty T. Salas 5/8/2018
Bias-Based Policing

Policy (Axon)

IA2017-110 11/28/2017 11/28/2017 Policy/Procedure Service Review Lt. Kwon

IA2017-111 11/10/2017 11/10/2017 Force Sgt. Salas 5/1/2018

IA2017-114 12/12/2017 12/13/2017 Force, Bias, CUBO Sgt. T.  Salas 5/14/2018

IA2017-115 12/20/2017 Unk Force, CUBO Sgt. McNack 5/21/2018
Policy/Procedure

IA2017-117 12/17/2017 12/28/2017 Performance Sgt. Togonon 5/29/2018
Arrest/ Detention

IA2017-118 12/25/2017 1/2/2018 Force Sgt. T. Salas 6/3/2018

IA2018-001 1/3/2018 1/3/2018 Force (OIS) Sgt. T.Salas 6/4/2018
Tolled

IA2018-003 1/28/2018 1/8/2018 CUBO Sgt. T. Salas 7/8/2018

IA2018-005 1/12/2018 1/12/2018 Bias/CUBO Sgt. McNack 6/13/2018

IA2018-007 1/26/2018 1/26/2018 Force Admin Closure Sgt. McNack 7/4/2018

IA2018-009 2/1/2018 2/8/2018 Bias Sgt. McNack 7/10/2018

IA2018-010 2/1 2/2 2018 2/12/2018 CUBO Sgt. Togonon 7/14/2018
CUBO

IA2018-011 2/12/2018 2/13/2018 Arrest/Detention, Force, Bias, 
CUBO

Deferred to 
OIPA #18-03 Sgt. T. Salas 7/16/2018

IA2018-013 2/7/2018 2/10/2018 Force/Policy/Procedure Sgt. McNack 7/22/2018
Policy/Procedure

IA2018-015 2/18/2018 2/20/2018 Performance of Duty, CUBO Sgt. T. Salas 7/22/2018

BART Police Department - Office of Internal Affairs
Investigation Log - May 2018

DATE COMPLETED DATE

015



IA
CASE # OCC'D REC'D ALLEGATION FINDING INVESTIGATOR DUE DATE

DATE COMPLETED DATE

IA2018-016 2/25/2018 2/26/2018 Policy/Procedure, POD Service Review Sgt. T. Salas 7/28/2018

IA2018-017 9/21/2016 2/22/2018 CUBO Admin Closure Sgt. T. Salas 7/30/2018

IA2018-018 2/28/2018 2/28/2018 Bias Based Policing Sgt. McNack 7/30/2018

IA2018-019 12/7/2017 3/5/2018 Bias, Courtesy, Policy/Procedure Deferred to 
OIPA #18-06 Lt. Kwon 8/5/2018

IA2018-020 12/23/2017 3/13/2018 Performance of Duty Sgt. McNack 8/12/2018

IA2018-021 3/10/2018 3/10/2018 Courtesy Admin Closure,    
   OIPA #18-07 Sgt. McNack 8/9/2018

016



      BART Police Performance Measurements

 

May 2018

82
61 69

107 103

11

15
17

24 29

1

1
1

2 1

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180
200

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov De
c

TOTAL AUTO CRIMES

Tire and Rim Theft

Catalytic Converter

Auto Burglary

5.75

3.94

5.19 5.38

3.76

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov De
c

Avg. Response Time
To Emergencies (Min.)

Response Time (Min.)

5 Minute Standard

19

29
22

16

42

‐10

10

30

50

70

90

110

130

150

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov De
c

Total Bike Thefts

Total Bike Thefts

9,831 

8042
8609

7,697

9,478 

 ‐

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 12,000

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov De
c

Total Parking Citations

Total Parking Citations

29

47

33

49

57

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov De
c

Total  Assault/ Battery on BART

Total Assault/ Battery
on BART

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1,000

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov De
c

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

OT Costs vs. Budget  YTD 
(Variance) 

197

149

190
202

244

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov De
c

Train Holds Over 5 Minutes

Train Holds Over 5
Minutes due to Police
Action

4 5

14

17

9

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov De
c

Employee Injuries

Employee Injuries

5

10

4

11

5

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov De
c

IA Complaints

IA Complaints

396 405
457

175
280

88 109

123

90

117

38
26

41

43

38

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Ja
n

Fe
b M
…

Ap
r M
…

Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov De
c

Arrests & Citations

Felony

Misdemeanor

Arrest by Citation

45

29 32 27

43

18

9
17

14

11

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov De
c

Electronic Item Thefts

Theft By Force or Fear

Theft By Snatching

363 365

406

155

237

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov De
c

Fare Evasion‐ CAD Data

6941

6222

7349

6418

6723

5600

5800

6000

6200

6400

6600

6800

7000

7200

7400

7600

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov De
c

Total Calls To ISRC (Dispatch)

Tri Tech Events

139 137
174 162 164

72 74

105
95 102

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov De
c

DD Open Cases & % Closed

Cases in Det  Que

New Cases

Cumulative % of Cases
Closed

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov De
c

Staffing Vacancies

Police Officer Vacancies

CSO  Vacancies

Dispatcher Vacancies

 Admin Specialist
Vacancies

RPG Vacancies

Top 5 Stations For Part 1 Crimes 
Most Frequent 2017 Most Frequent all of 2017
2018 Current Month 2017 YEAR

Richmond Coliseum
MacArthur Bay Fair
Coliseum West Oakland
San Leandro Fruitvale
West Oakland East Dublin

This list was obtained by adding the highest totals listed
in the Part 1 crimes data.

Disclaimer‐‐**The data is drawn from the BART Police Department TriTech computer database, and 
they are unaudited. The numbers may not match the official monthly totals reported to the FBI 
through the Uniform Crime Reporting (UCR) program. Late reporting, the reclassification or 
unfounding of crimes, can affect crime statistics. The statistics contained in the on the Performance 
Measurements are subject to change , updates, and corrections. **

PART 1
CRIMES 2017 2018

Homicide 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
Rape 0 2 3 4 8 7 2 -71%
Robbery 209 153 161 232 290 132 110 -17%
Aggravated Assault 57 71 73 93 121 44 58 32%
Violent Crime Subtotal 239 199 200 279 347 183 170 -7%
Burglary (N o t  Inc luding A uto ) 25 7 4 12 15 3 9 200%
Larceny 2524 2597 2325 2217 2593 991 1011 2%
Auto Theft 483 522 480 480 420 182 173 -5%
Arson 0 0 0 1 4 1 3 200%

Property Crime Subtotal 3032 3126 2809 2710 3032 1177 1196 2%

TOTAL 3271 3325 3009 2989 3372 1360 1366 0%
# D IV / 0  -  N ot  C alculab le  *Aggravated Assault table updated to conform to UCR totals *

% 
change
from '17

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 YTD May 017



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD
Felony Arrest 38 26 41 43 38 186

YTD 2018 38 64 105 148 186
Misd. Arrest 88 109 123 90 117 527

YTD 2018 88 197 320 410 527
Cite & Release 396 405 457 175 280 1,713

YTD 2018 396 801 1,258 1,433 1,713
Field Interview 512 581 581 476 527 2,677

YTD 2018 512 1,093 1,674 2,150 2,677

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD
Felony Arrest 29 32 35 28 34 35 24 33 36 37 28 18 369

YTD 2017 29 61 96 124 158 193 217 250 286 323 351 369
Misd. Arrest 96 82 112 100 109 107 106 137 129 142 131 104 1,355

YTD 2017 96 178 290 390 499 606 712 849 978 1,120 1,251 1,355
Cite & Release 356 578 355 252 222 155 261 654 385 730 287 200 4,435

YTD 2017 356 934 1,289 1,541 1,763 1,918 2,179 2,833 3,218 3,948 4,235 4,435
Field Interview 175 336 322 349 418 336 348 545 749 646 508 466 5,198

YTD 2017 175 511 833 1,182 1,600 1,936 2,284 2,829 3,578 4,224 4,732 5,198

Enforcement Contacts - 2017

Enforcement Contacts - 2018
018



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD
Felony Arrest 23 20 37 24 31 28 22 24 21 32 31 26 319

YTD 2016 23 43 80 104 135 163 185 209 230 262 293 319
Misd. Arrest 71 57 50 86 103 86 74 73 71 79 92 77 919

YTD 2016 71 128 178 264 367 453 527 600 671 750 842 919
Cite & Release 424 538 443 195 591 195 314 162 239 229 229 246 3,805

YTD 2016 424 962 1,405 1,600 2,191 2,386 2,700 2,862 3,101 3,330 3,559 3,805
Field Interview 175 501 219 469 482 422 350 490 372 425 444 355 4,704

YTD 2016 175 676 895 1,364 1,846 2,268 2,618 3,108 3,480 3,905 4,349 4,704

Enforcement Contacts - 2016
019



0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45
50

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Felony Arrests

2016 2017 2018

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Misdemeanor Arrests

2016 2017 2018

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Cite & Release

2016 2017 2018

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Field Interviews

2016 2017 2018

020



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD
Citations Issued 9,925 8,042 8,629 7,697 9,520 43,813

YTD 2018 9,925 17,967 26,596 34,293 43,813

Contested 2,121 1,808 2,152 1,782 1,827 9,690

YTD 2018 2,121 3,929 6,081 7,863 9,690

Dismissed 1,502 1,200 1,448 1,160 1,152 6,462

YTD 2018 1,502 2,702 4,150 5,310 6,462

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD
Citations Issued 7,997 8,400 9,104 7,424 8,716 8,028 6,318 8,131 6,933 8,939 8,973 7,316 96,279

YTD 2017 7,997 16,397 25,501 32,925 41,641 49,669 55,987 64,118 71,051 79,990 88,963 96,279

Contested 1,324 1,673 1,761 1,796 1,912 1,681 1,587 1,734 1,578 1,793 1,556 2,116 20,511

YTD 2017 1,324 2,997 4,758 6,554 8,466 10,147 11,734 13,468 15,046 16,839 18,395 20,511

Dismissed 821 1,000 1,136 1,223 1,288 1,070 998 1,115 937 1,107 940 1,375 13,010

YTD 2017 821 1,821 2,957 4,180 5,468 6,538 7,536 8,651 9,588 10,695 11,635 13,010

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD
Citations Issued 7,559 7,608 7,225 6,988 7,521 7,312 6,419 7,218 6,698 8,326 9,229 8,205 90,308

YTD 2016 7,559 15,167 22,392 29,380 36,901 44,213 50,632 57,850 64,548 72,874 82,103 90,308

Contested 1,211 1,297 1,112 938 1,289 1,248 1,179 1,063 979 1,259 1,433 1,139 14,147

YTD 2016 1,211 2,508 3,620 4,558 5,847 7,095 8,274 9,337 10,316 11,575 13,008 14,147

Dismissed 722 788 688 738 847 772 668 649 602 690 855 733 8,752

YTD 2016 722 1,510 2,198 2,936 3,783 4,555 5,223 5,872 6,474 7,164 8,019 8,752

Parking Enforcement - 2017

Parking Enforcement - 2016

Parking Enforcement - 2018
021



0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Parking Citations

Citations Issued 2016 Citations Issued 2017 Citations Issued 2018

022



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2018

BART Felony Warrants 2 1 3 0 2
BART Misdemeanor Warrants 3 3 2 2 6

O/S Felony Warrants 12 10 16 29 29
O/S Misdemeanor Warrants 40 37 68 55 60

Monthly Total 57 51 89 86 97
YTD Total 57 108 197 283 380

2017
BART Felony Warrants 1 2 1 1 2 3 1 5 1 1 1 0

BART Misdemeanor Warrants 6 4 3 5 9 2 6 17 10 3 8 3
O/S Felony Warrants 20 19 20 18 18 15 10 9 18 16 14 6

O/S Misdemeanor Warrants 39 40 53 53 54 44 52 53 48 74 60 36
Monthly Total 66 65 77 77 83 64 69 84 77 94 83 45

YTD Total 66 131 208 285 368 432 501 585 662 756 839 884

2016
BART Felony Warrants 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1

BART Misdemeanor Warrants 11 18 8 3 3 4 0 0 0 0 2 3
O/S Felony Warrants 16 28 23 12 6 9 15 12 8 20 17 11

O/S Misdemeanor Warrants 53 35 35 34 48 35 41 32 30 28 33 62
Monthly Total 80 81 66 50 57 48 56 44 38 48 53 77

YTD Total 80 161 227 277 334 382 438 482 520 568 621 698

Warrant Arrests
023



Number of cases 
that the district 

attorney's offices 
has not made a 
final disposition

`

Number of cases 
that were not 

charged by the 
district attorney's 

offices

Percentage of 
cases that the 

district attorney's 
offices filed charges

Total number of 
cases  that are 
assigned to a 

detective as of   
June 6, 2018

164 102 4 58 34% 10824 20

Number of cases 
that are still being 

investigated by 
detectives

Number of cases 
that all current 

leads have been 
exhausted

Number of cases 
that were sent to 

the district 
attorney's offices 

for a review 

Number of cases 
that were 

charged/probation 
violation by the 
district attorney  

Date: 06/06/2018

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit Police Department
Criminal Investigations Section Monthly Summary Report

May 2018

14

Total number of 
cases assigned to 
detectives during 

the month 

Detective Assignments

Submitted By:  Sgt. J. Power S-49                                              

024



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit Police Department

Number of cases 
that are still being 

investigated by 
detectives

Number of cases 
that all current 

leads have been 
suspended

Number of cases 
that were sent to 

the district 
attorney's offices for 

a review (suspect 
identified)

Percentage of 
cases closed by 
identification of 

suspect

Percentage of 
cases suspended

Percentage of 
cases Open

1894 220 380 1258 66% 20% 12%
Charles D39 212 30 40 139 66% 19% 14%
Johnson D51 263 68 28 166 63% 11% 26%
Lahanas D75 149 9 11 119 80% 7% 6%
Plumley D31 371 15 80 272 73% 22% 4%

Medeiros D55 515 74 119 317 62% 23% 14%
Krehbiel D27 247 7 83 145 59% 34% 3%

Davis D54 137 17 19 100 73% 14% 12%

Total Past 60 days
Charles D39 6
Johnson D51 23 2
Lahanas D75 10

Medeiros D55 34 1
Plumley D31 15 3
Krehbiel D27 4

Davis D54 15 5

CASES IN DETECTIVE QUEUE

Total number of  cases 
assigned to detectives 

previous 12 months           
(June 2017 - May 2018)

Criminal Investigations Section 
May 2018

Detective Closure Rate

D51 currently out on industrial leave.  Cases to be re-
assingned and cleared. 
D51 currently out on industrial leave.  Cases to be re-
assingned and cleared. 

Submitted by:  Sgt. John J. Power #S49
Date: June 6, 2018

025



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD
Prohibition Orders Issued 20 28 28 33 31 140

YTD 2018 20 48 76 109 140

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD
Prohibition Orders Issued 18 18 30 27 37 30 24 21 27 31 38 14 315

YTD 2017 18 36 66 93 130 160 184 205 232 263 300 315

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD
Prohibition Orders Issued 21 16 22 17 39 23 20 25 19 31 24 19 276

YTD 2016 21 37 59 76 115 138 158 183 202 233 257 276

Assembly Bill 716 - 2017

Assembly Bill 716 - 2016

Assembly Bill 716 - 2018

026



0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Prohibition Orders

Prohibition Orders 2016 Prohibition Orders 2017 Prohibition Orders 2018

027



Absence Category 
Description Absence Hours Absence Days % Total

Comp Time Taken 1,801 179 21%
Holiday 690 73 9%

Holiday (discretionary) 180 18 2%
Jury Duty 30 3 0%

Military Leave 188 16 2%
Training 2,775 299 36%

Union Business 527 49 6%
Vacation 2,046 203 24%

Grand Total 8,236 840 100%

Scheduled Absence Overview - May 2018

028



Absence Category 
Description Absence Hours Absence Days % Total

Comp Time Taken 1,977 194 23%
Holiday 767 80 10%

Holiday (discretionary) 310 30 4%
Make Whole 8 1 0%

Military Leave 30 3 0%
Miscellaneous (discretionary) 16 2 0%

Training 2,405 263 31%
Union Business 118 11 1%

Vacation 2,627 258 31%
Grand Total 8,258 841 100%

Scheduled Absence Overview - May 2017

029



Absence Category Description Absence Hours Absence Days % Total

AB47 42 4 2%
FMLA 316 32 13%

Industrial 1,282 126 53%
Late/Unauthorized 54 5 2%
Managerial Leave 30 3 1%

Miscellaneous 92 8 3%
Non-Paid 57 5 2%

Sick Leave 546 53 23%
Grand Total 2,418 236 100%

Unscheduled Absence Overview - May 2018

030



Absence Category Description Absence Hours Absence Days % Total

AB47 29 3 1%
FMLA 474 49 15%

Industrial 1,638 155 46%
Late/Unauthorized 41 4 1%
Managerial Leave 60 6 2%

Miscellaneous 120 12 4%
Non-Paid 24 2 1%

Sick Leave 1,010 104 31%
Grand Total 3,396 335 100%

Unscheduled Absence Overview - May 2017

031



Activity Name Activity ID Overtime10 Overtime15 Overtime20 Overtime10 Overtime15 Overtime20
Administration ADMIN 0 515 0 0 0 0

Adv Officer Training ADVOF 200 4,236 10,333 579 15,629 12,534

BART Labor BLABR 389 11,618 17,044 203 5,581 2,947

BF OT Discr Day BPD BFDSC 0 256 1,838 230 1,224 2,071

BF OT Industrial Leave BPD BFILV 0 11,568 22,777 0 1,038 964

BF OT Minimum Rest BFRST 0 812 0 0 301 482

BF OT Patrol TRN BFTRN 0 226 2,607 0 2,359 8,111

BF OT Recovery Day BFRCV 0 986 6,148 611 12,647 26,657

BF OT Training BPD BFTRN 0 226 2,607 0 2,359 8,111

BF OT Vacancy BPD BFVCN 0 4,140 9,400 0 13,371 20,826

BF OT Vacation BPD BFVAC 567 22,154 42,158 1,180 19,183 35,217

BF Sick/FMLA/Brvment BFSLV 620 14,399 12,403 184 9,117 9,758

Boardroom Security BRDRM 0 703 594 0 742 2,562

Bus Bridge Services BUA15 333 0 3,489 0 0 0

COPPS Project/Event COPPS 24 2,108 5,408 0 80 0

Civil Unrest PRTST 1,522 12,408 0 0 3,408 988

Coliseum Events CEOPS 0 4,468 7,251 1,299 13,732 20,679

Construction Management CNMGT 0 0 0 748 8,749 23,805

Court Appearance COURT 0 0 0 0 339 0

Crowd Ctrl for Spec CROWD 0 0 0 0 2,355 4,976

Detectives Unit OT INVST 0 7,618 226 0 1,744 0

E-BART SECURTITY EBSEC 0 0 0 248 5,674 7,843

EMS/OWS Pltfrm Detail PLTFM 1,165 7,303 10,506 700 9,858 11,731

Evidence Collection EVIDN 0 71 0 0 89 0

Explorer Advisors EXPLR 0 0 1,928 0 2,092 0

Final Design FDSGN 0 3,296 0 0 3,408 5,104

Held Over/Late Case HLDOV 0 13,652 968 0 8,034 1,097

Honor Guard Detail HONOR 0 4,786 3,702 0 3,243 509

IA Unit Overtime IAUNT 0 3,331 5,243 0 2,145 0

Jnt Terrorism Tskfrce JTTFO 0 1,347 798 0 0 1,038

K-9 Team Training K9TTR 0 524 0 0 0 0

BART PD OVERTIME MONTHLY REPORT

2017 2018
May 2018

032



LABNE 0 0 0 0 0 1,221

LBRNG 0 0 0 0 0 921

MTC SECURITY MTCSC 0 0 0 0 957 0

Meeting Attendance MTNGS 0 2,166 0 0 3,252 646

Mgr of Sec Programs SECPR 0 1,472 0 0 1,059 0

Operating OPRTN 1 23,001 17,188 1,634 17,133 14,684

P&T Unit Overtime PTUNT 0 10,855 7,906 119 11,305 13,301

Police Admin OT PADMN 1,049 14,249 4,385 0 5,674 1,005

Ptrl Special Enforcement SPECL 1,235 35,445 27,893 460 30,702 27,158

Raiders - Walkway RAIDR 3,012 112,531 57,376 0 0 0

Raiders Game Cleanup RAIDR 3,012 112,531 57,376 0 0 0

Range Staff Training RANGE 0 0 0 482 0 0

Rev Protection Unit OT RVPRT 0 135 0 0 95 0

SF STA CLN SEC DSFCS 0 0 0 129 4,053 9,167

SWAT Team Expenses SWATT 0 0 1,167 0 0 1,929

SWAT Team Training SWATT 0 0 1,167 0 0 1,929

Special Events SPEVN 0 2,098 4,711 0 3,542 8,186

Training TRNNG 0 0 0 386 1,734 5,299

Training Other TRNOT 0 3,930 6,265 287 12,852 7,185

Union Business UNBUS 0 0 0 0 3,314 12,996

Walnut Creek Transit Village C154A 0 0 0 0 2,511 0

13,128 451,165 352,861 9,479 246,686 313,638Total

May 2018 817,154 569,803

Labor Negotiations

033



034



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD
Calls for Service 6,941 6,222 7,349 6,452 6,724 33,688

YTD 2018 6,941 13,163 20,512 26,964 33,688

Priority 1 Calls 192 180 183 214 214 983

YTD 2018 192 372 555 769 983

Medical Emergencies 414 310 344 373 386 1,827

YTD 2018 414 724 1,068 1,441 1,827

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD
Calls for Service 5,855 6,093 6,250 6,331 6,670 6,605 6,448 7,562 6,850 7,460 6,117 6,553 78,794

YTD 2017 5,855 11,948 18,198 24,529 31,199 37,804 44,252 51,814 58,664 66,124 72,241 78,794

Priority 1 Calls 214 192 194 182 209 234 210 185 174 204 154 176 2,328

YTD 2017 214 406 600 782 991 1,225 1,435 1,620 1,794 1,998 2,152 2,328

Medical Emergencies 425 327 357 344 367 385 376 344 356 387 387 463 4,518

YTD 2017 425 752 1,109 1,453 1,820 2,205 2,581 2,925 3,281 3,668 4,055 4,518

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD
Calls for Service 7,934 5,536 5,563 5,221 5,511 5,587 5,488 5,726 5,797 6,111 5,970 5,621 70,065

YTD 2016 7,934 13,470 19,033 24,254 29,765 35,352 40,840 46,566 52,363 58,474 64,444 70,065

Priority 1 Calls 177 151 171 154 177 156 180 181 177 178 178 157 2,037

YTD 2016 177 328 499 653 830 986 1,166 1,347 1,524 1,702 1,880 2,037

Medical Emergencies 305 277 334 315 305 304 281 278 334 313 307 389 3,742

YTD 2016 305 582 916 1,231 1,536 1,840 2,121 2,399 2,733 3,046 3,353 3,742

Communications Center - 2017

Communications Center - 2016

Communications Center - 2018
035



0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Calls for Service

Calls for Service 2016 Calls for Service 2017 Calls for Service 2018

036



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD
Suspicious Activity 235 212 213 262 202 1,124          
Crime in Progress 177 151 194 257 226 1,005          
Illegally Parked Vehicle 24 24 16 38 10 112             
Vandalism 60 68 102 67 75 372             
Unattended Bag or Package 44 50 44 42 32 212             
Sexual Assault/Lewd Behavior 36 71 52 29 47 235             
Report a Crime Tip 60 44 51 54 40 249             
Robbery/Theft 28 22 21 35 30 136             
Unsecure Door 19 7 14 9 10 59               
Disruptive Behavior 1167 1111 1408 1314 1367 6,367          
Panhandling 172 177 223 155 214 941             
Total 2022 1937 2338 2262 2253 10,812        

Total Downloads: 48,709

Total Reports Made
Anonymous: 39.88%

Non-Anonymous: 60.12%

BART Watch - 2018
037



Identification Total

Anonymous 39.89 %

Description Reports sent anonymously.

Non-Anonymous 60.11 %

Description Reports sent non-anonymously.

App Statistics (including tests)

Total Messages (iOS) 52442

Description Reports and replies via iOS devices.

Total Messages (Android) 26088

Description Reports and replies via Android devices.

Total Messages (SMS) 3

Description Reports and replies via SMS.

TEST-THIS IS ONLY A TEST # of Reports (all time)

TEST Report Total 5892

Top SMS Users

Phone Number Number of Reports

5103685574 1

5108215151 1

4849860547 1

Statistics Six Week Average 06/25-07/01 06/18-06/24 06/11-06/17 06/04-06/10 05/28-06/03 05/21-05/27

Alerts Sent 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0

Description The total number of alerts sent.

Incoming Reports 371.67 364 360 393 412 316 385

Description The number of reports sent from users.

Replies to Reports 334.67 387 286 348 388 253 346

Description The number of replies sent to users from ELERTS EPICenter console.

Report Type # of Reports (all time)

Disruptive Behavior (A) 17702 41.68%

Panhandling (A) 4049 9.53%

[none selected] 3980 9.37%

Suspicious Activity (A) 3696 8.70%

Other (D) 3080 7.25%

Crime in Progress (A) 2535 5.97%

Panhandling or Disruptive Behavior (D) 1967 4.63%

Vandalism (A) 1401 3.30%

Unattended Bag or Package (A) 1077 2.54%

Report a Crime Tip (A) 842 1.98%

Illegally Parked Vehicle (A) 749 1.76%

Sexual Assault / Lewd Behavior (A) 678 1.60%

Robbery / Theft (A) 423 1.00%

Unsecure Door (A) 263 0.62%

Human Trafficking (A) 21 0.05%

Text a Tip (A) 8 0.02%

Total 42471 100 %

(A) Active | Disabled (D)

Statistics

Page 1 of 1ELERTS - EPICenter Console

7/3/2018https://console.elerts.com/stats



Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2018/03/26, All Rights Reserved. 
Published with permission by Bay Area Rapid Transit Police 
Department 

Officer-Involved Shootings and Deaths - 1  

 

Bay Area Rapid Transit Police Department 
BART PD Policy Manual 

 
 
 

 

 

Officer-Involved Shootings and Deaths 
310.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE 
The purpose of this policy is to establish policy and procedures for the investigation of an incident 
in which a person is injured or dies as the result of an officer-involved shooting or dies as a result 
of the actions of an officer. 

In other incidents not covered by this policy, the Chief of Police may decide that the investigation 
will follow the process provided in this policy. 

 
310.2 POLICY 
The policy of the Bay Area Rapid Transit Police Department is to ensure that officer-involved 
shootings and deaths are investigated in a thorough, fair and impartial manner. 

 
310.3 TYPES OF INVESTIGATIONS 
Officer-involved shootings and deaths involve several separate investigations. The investigations 
may include: 

• A criminal investigation of the suspect’s actions. 

• A criminal investigation of the involved officer’s actions. 

• An administrative investigation as to policy compliance by involved officers. 

• A civil investigation to determine potential liability. 
 
310.4 CONTROL OF INVESTIGATIONS 
Investigators from surrounding agencies may be assigned to work on the criminal investigation of 
officer-involved shootings and deaths. This may include at least one investigator from the agency 
that employs the involved officer. 

Jurisdiction is determined by the location of the shooting or death and the agency employing the 
involved officer. The following scenarios outline the jurisdictional responsibilities for investigating 
officer-involved shootings and deaths. 

 
310.4.1 CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION OF SUSPECT ACTIONS 
The investigation of any possible criminal conduct by the suspect is controlled by the agency in 
whose jurisdiction the suspect’s crime occurred. For example, the Bay Area Rapid Transit Police 
Department would control the investigation if the suspect’s crime occurred in BART. 

If multiple crimes have been committed in multiple jurisdictions, identification of the agency that 
will control the investigation may be reached in the same way as with any other crime. The 
investigation may be conducted by another agency, at the discretion of the Chief of Police and 
with concurrence from the other agency. 

Policy 

310 



Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2018/03/26, All Rights Reserved. 
Published with permission by Bay Area Rapid Transit Police 
Department 

Officer-Involved Shootings and Deaths - 2 

Bay Area Rapid Transit Police Department 
BART PD Policy Manual 

Officer-Involved Shootings and Deaths 

 

 

 
 
310.4.2 CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION OF OFFICER ACTIONS 
The control of the criminal investigation into the involved officer’s conduct during the incident 
will be determined by the employing agency’s protocol. When an officer from this department is 
involved, the criminal investigation will be handled according to the Criminal Investigation section 
of this policy. 

Requests made of this department to investigate a shooting or death involving an outside agency’s 
officer shall be referred to the Chief of Police or the authorized designee for approval. 

 
310.4.3 ADMINISTRATIVE AND CIVIL INVESTIGATION 
Regardless of where the incident occurs, the administrative and civil investigation of each involved 
officer is controlled by the respective employing agency. 

 
310.4.4 INVESTIGATION RESPONSIBILITY MATRIX 
The following table helps identify the possible scenarios and responsibilities for the investigation 
of officer-involved shootings. This may vary based on the incident county and their protocol. 

Criminal 
Investigation 
of Suspect(s) 

Criminal 
Investigation 
of Officer(s) 

Civil Investigation Administrative 
Investigation 

BPD Officer in 
This Jurisdiction 

 
Allied Agency's 
Officer in This 
Jurisdiction 

BPD Investigators BPD Investigators 
w/District 

Attorney's Office 
BPD Investigators  District 

Attorney's Office 

BART Legal 
Counsel 

 
Involved Officer's 

Department 

BPD Office of 
Professional 
Standards 
Involved 
Officer's 

Department 

BPD Officer 
in Another 

Jurisdiction 

Agency where 
incident occurred 

Decision made 
by agency where 
incident occurred 

BART Legal 
Counsel 

BPD Office of 
Professional 
Standards 



Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2018/03/26, All Rights Reserved. 
Published with permission by Bay Area Rapid Transit Police 
Department 

Officer-Involved Shootings and Deaths - 3 

Bay Area Rapid Transit Police Department 
BART PD Policy Manual 

Officer-Involved Shootings and Deaths 

 

 

 
310.5 INVESTIGATION PROCESS 
The following procedures are guidelines used in the investigation of an officer-involved shooting 
or death.  The following checklist is a guideline that should be followed following an officer-
involved shooting or death incident: 
• Take all necessary life-saving efforts. 
• Request additional manpower as needed. 
• Assign an officer to ride with injured in ambulance with a recording device; a) maintain 

physical evidence, b) maintain custody of arrestee, c) obtain spontaneous statements or 
dying declaration, d) transmit information to and from medical personnel. 

• Make necessary notifications (refer to 310.5.3, Notifications) 
• Obtain basic facts from involved officers (public safety statement) – statement to establish 

crime scene boundaries, location of evidence, outstanding suspects etc. 
• Confirm who are the involved officer(s).  If necessary, check all firearms of witness officers.  

Make sure to take notes on each, collecting any which were fired or misfired. 
• Locate, identify, and sequester civilian witnesses as soon as possible. 
• Start canvas of the area for other witnesses, locating unaccounted for vehicles, weapons, 

people, etc. 
• Radio broadcasts and teletypes regarding outstanding suspects, vehicles, witnesses, etc. 
• Collect gunshot residue from shooters and involved persons being transported. 
• Collect the involved officers’ body worn cameras. 
• The Chief of Police or designee makes the determination if the involved officer/witness 

officers have access to view their body worn camera video of the incident.  The involved 
officer/witness officers shall not be allowed to access their body worn camera, without the 
expressed permission from the Chief of Police or designee. 

• Identify and secure all scenes (original location, escape/chase route, fatal scene, vehicles 
involved, hospital etc.; leave officer’s vehicle in place, but collect keys for later removal). 

• Evidence technicians should process the scene, including photographs and collection in 
counties where the local crime lab will not respond.  If local crime lab is responding, 
preservation steps (including collection, if necessary) should be undertaken to prevent the 
destruction of evidence. 

• Limit entry into scene to absolute minimum. 
• Maintain scene log to record every entry and exit (who, when, why). 
• Instruct involved officers to keep guns holstered until replacement weapons are provided.  

When replacement weapon is available, supervisor/evidence technician should collect any 
fired weapons without opening or disturbing condition or trace evidence.  Note and record 
details of collection, condition, adhering evidence, chain of custody etc. 

• Have involved officers taken to the police station by independent officers.  Order all involved 
personnel not to discuss the incident.  Allow personnel to contact attorney or family prior to 
detailed interview.  Keep involved personnel sequestered prior to interview. 

• Ensure that a drug/alcohol test is administered to the involved officer (coordinated through 



Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2018/03/26, All Rights Reserved. 
Published with permission by Bay Area Rapid Transit Police 
Department 

Officer-Involved Shootings and Deaths - 4 

Bay Area Rapid Transit Police Department 
BART PD Policy Manual 

Officer-Involved Shootings and Deaths 

 

 

the Operations Control Center Manager).  Accommodations should be made for the 
involved officer to be later driven to his/her place of residence after the conclusion of the 
initial investigation. 

• Collect available information to brief investigators. 
• In cases of officer involved shootings where an officer fatality is involved, a Department 

Chaplain or representative from the Department should be assigned as a liaison to the 
family of the deceased. 

 
310.5.1 OFFICER IN CHARGE - RESPONSIBILITIES 
Upon arrival at the scene of an officer-involved shooting, the first uninvolved BPD officer will be 
the officer-in-charge and will assume the responsibilities of a supervisor until properly relieved. 
This officer should, as appropriate: 

(a) Secure the scene and identify and eliminate hazards for all those involved. 

(b) Take reasonable steps to obtain emergency medical attention for injured individuals. 

(c) Request additional resources from the Department or other agencies. 

(d) Coordinate a perimeter or pursuit of suspects. 

(e) Check for injured persons and evacuate as needed. 

(f) Brief the supervisor upon arrival 

 
310.5.2 WATCH COMMANDER RESPONSIBILITIES 
Upon learning of an officer-involved shooting or death, the Watch Commander shall be responsible 
for coordinating all aspects of the incident until he/she is relieved by the Chief of Police or a Bureau 
Commander. 

All outside inquiries about the incident shall be directed to the Watch Commander. 

 
310.5.3 NOTIFICATIONS 
The following notifications shall be made soon as practical after an officer involved shooting: 

• BART Police Communications Center 

• On-duty supervisor and officers responsible for the area in which the incident occurred 

• On-duty Watch Commander or on-call command officer 

• If other than BART Police, the agency having primary investigative responsibility 

• Detective Sergeant and on-call detective 

• Chief of Police and appropriate command officers 

• Operations Control Center (If necessary) 

• County Officer Involved Shooting Protocol rollout team 

• Department of Media Affairs as directed by the Chief 

• Coroner (if necessary) 



Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2018/03/26, All Rights Reserved. 
Published with permission by Bay Area Rapid Transit Police 
Department 

Officer-Involved Shootings and Deaths - 5 

Bay Area Rapid Transit Police Department 
BART PD Policy Manual 

Officer-Involved Shootings and Deaths 

 

 

• BPMA/BPOA Representative 

• Trauma Response Team 

• Office of the Independent Police Auditor 
 
310.6 CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION 
The District Attorney's Office is responsible for the criminal investigation into the circumstances 
of any officer-involved shooting or death. 

If available, investigative personnel from this department may be assigned to partner with 
investigators from outside agencies or the District Attorney's Office to avoid duplicating efforts in 
related criminal investigations. 

Once public safety issues have been addressed, criminal investigators should be given the 
opportunity to obtain a voluntary statement from involved officers and to complete their interviews. 
The following shall be considered for the involved officer: 

(a) BPD supervisors and Office of Internal Affairs personnel should not participate directly 
in any voluntary interview of BPD officers. This will not prohibit such personnel from 
monitoring interviews or providing the criminal investigators with topics for inquiry. 

(b) If requested, any involved officer will be afforded the opportunity to consult individually 
with a representative of his/her choosing or an attorney prior to speaking with criminal 
investigators (Government Code § 3303(i)). However, in order to maintain the integrity 
of each involved officer’s statement, involved officers shall not consult or meet with a 
representative or an attorney collectively or in groups prior to being interviewed. 

(c) If any involved officer is physically, emotionally or otherwise not able to provide a 
voluntary statement when interviewed by criminal investigators, consideration should 
be given to allowing a reasonable period for the officer to schedule an alternate time for 
the interview. 

(d) Any voluntary statement provided by an involved officer will be made available for 
inclusion in any related investigation, including administrative investigations. However, 
no administratively coerced statement will be provided to any criminal investigators. 

 
 
310.6.1 REPORT WRITING 
The assigned investigator or designee shall write any required report on behalf of the involved 
officer(s). If suspects remain outstanding or subject to prosecution for related offenses, this 
department shall retain the authority to require involved BPD officers to provide sufficient 
information for related criminal reports to facilitate the apprehension and prosecution of those 
individuals (Government Code § 3304(a)) 

Since the purpose of these reports will be to facilitate criminal prosecution, statements of involved 
officers should focus on evidence to establish the elements of criminal activities by suspects. Care 
should be taken not to duplicate information provided by involved officers in other reports. 

Nothing in this section shall be construed to deprive an involved BPD officer of the right to consult 
with legal counsel prior to completing any such criminal report. 

Reports related to the prosecution of criminal suspects will be processed according to normal 
procedures but should also be included for reference in the investigation of the officer-involved 



Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2018/03/26, All Rights Reserved. 
Published with permission by Bay Area Rapid Transit Police 
Department 

Officer-Involved Shootings and Deaths - 6 

Bay Area Rapid Transit Police Department 
BART PD Policy Manual 

Officer-Involved Shootings and Deaths 

 

 

shooting or death. 
 
310.6.2 WITNESS IDENTIFICATION AND INTERVIEWS 
Because potential witnesses to an officer-involved shooting or death may become unavailable or 
the integrity of their statements compromised with the passage of time, a supervisor should take 
reasonable steps to promptly coordinate with criminal investigators to utilize available personnel 
for the following: 

(a) Identification of all persons present at the scene and in the immediate area. 

When feasible, a recorded statement should be obtained from those persons who 
claim not to have witnessed the incident but who were present at the time it occurred. 

Any potential witness who is unwilling or unable to remain available for a formal 
interview should not be detained absent reasonable suspicion to detain or 
probable cause to arrest. Without detaining the individual for the sole purpose of 
identification, officers should attempt to identify the witness prior to his/her 
departure. 

(b) Witnesses who are willing to provide a formal interview should be asked to meet at a 
suitable location where criminal investigator may obtain a recorded statement. Such 
witnesses, if willing, may be transported by a member of the Department. 

When the witness is a minor, consent should be obtained from the parent or 
guardian, if available, prior to transportation. 

(c) Promptly contacting the suspect’s known family and associates to obtain any available 
and untainted background information about the suspect’s activities and state of mind 
prior to the incident. 

 
310.7 ADMINISTRATIVE INVESTIGATION 
In addition to all other investigations associated with an officer-involved shooting or death, this 
department will conduct an internal administrative investigation of BPD officers to determine 
conformance with department policy. The investigation will be conducted under the supervision 
of the Office of Internal Affairs and will be considered a confidential officer personnel file. 

Interviews of members shall be subject to department policies and applicable laws (see the 
Personnel Complaints Policy). 

(a) If any officer has voluntarily elected to provide a statement to criminal investigators, the 
assigned administrative investigator should review that statement before proceeding 
with any further interview of that involved officer. 

1. If a further interview of the officer is deemed necessary to determine policy 
compliance, care should be taken to limit the inquiry to new areas with minimal, if 
any, duplication of questions addressed in the voluntary statement. The involved 
officer shall be provided with a copy of his/her prior statement before proceeding 
with any subsequent interviews. 

(b) If an involved officer has elected to not provide criminal investigators with a voluntary 
statement, the assigned administrative investigator shall conduct an administrative 



Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2018/03/26, All Rights Reserved. 
Published with permission by Bay Area Rapid Transit Police 
Department 

Officer-Involved Shootings and Deaths - 7 

Bay Area Rapid Transit Police Department 
BART PD Policy Manual 

Officer-Involved Shootings and Deaths 

 

 

interview to determine all relevant information. 

1. Although this interview should not be unreasonably delayed, care should be 
taken to ensure that the officer’s physical and psychological needs have been 
addressed before commencing the interview. 

2. If requested, the officer shall have the opportunity to select an uninvolved 
representative to be present during the interview. However, in order to maintain 
the integrity of each individual officer's statement, involved officers shall not 
consult or meet with a representative or attorney collectively or in groups prior 
to being interviewed (Government Code § 3303(i)). Administrative interviews 
should be recorded by the investigator. The officer may also record the interview 
(Government Code § 3303(g)). 

3. The officer shall be informed of the nature of the i n v e s t i g a t i o n .  If a n  
officer r e f u s e s  t o  a n s w e r  q u e s t i o n s , h e /she   should   be   given   
his/ her Lybarger or Garrity rights and ordered to provide full and truthful 
answers to all questions. The officer shall be informed that the interview 
will be for administrative purposes only and that the statement cannot be used 
criminally. 

4. The Office of Internal Affairs shall compile all relevant information and reports 
necessary for the Department to determine compliance with applicable policies. 
 

5. Regardless of whether the use of force is an issue in the case, the completed 
administrative investigation shall be submitted to the Use of Force Review 
Board, which will restrict its findings as to whether there was compliance with 
the Use of Force Policy. 

6. Any other indications of potential policy violations shall be determined in 
accordance with standard disciplinary procedures. 

 
310.8 MEDIA RELATIONS 
Any media release shall be prepared w i t h  i n p u t  a n d  concurrence f r o m  t h e  s u p e r v i s o r  
and department representative responsible for each phase of the investigation.  Releases will 
be available to the Watch Commander, Criminal Investigations Section Bureau Commander and 
Media and Public Affairs Manager in the event of inquiries from the media. 

It will be the policy of this department to not release the identities of involved officers absent their 
consent or as required by law. Moreover, no involved officer shall be subjected to contact from 
the media (Government Code § 3303(e)) and no involved officer shall make any comments to the 
press unless authorized by the Chief of Police or a Bureau Deputy Chief. 

Department members receiving inquiries regarding officer-involved shootings or deaths occurring 
in other jurisdictions shall refrain from public comment and will direct those inquiries to the agency 
having jurisdiction and primary responsibility for the investigation. 

 
310.9 DEBRIEFING 
Following an officer-involved shooting or death, the Bay Area Rapid Transit Police Department 



Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2018/03/26, All Rights Reserved. 
Published with permission by Bay Area Rapid Transit Police 
Department 

Officer-Involved Shootings and Deaths - 8 

Bay Area Rapid Transit Police Department 
BART PD Policy Manual 

Officer-Involved Shootings and Deaths 

 

 

shall conduct both a critical incident/stress debriefing and a tactical debriefing. 
 
310.9.1 TACTICAL DEBRIEFING 
A tactical debriefing should take place to identify any training or areas of policy that need 
improvement. The Chief of Police should identify the appropriate participants. This debriefing 
should not be conducted until all involved members have provided recorded or formal statements 
to criminal and/or administrative investigators. 

 

310.9.2 CRITICAL INCIDENT/STRESS DEBRIEFING 
A critical incident/stress debriefing should occur as soon as practicable. The Support Services 
Bureau Commander is responsible for organizing the debriefing. Notes and recorded statements 
should not be taken because the sole purpose of the debriefing is to help mitigate the stress- 
related effects of a traumatic event. 

The debriefing is not part of any investigative process. Care should be taken not to release or 
repeat any communication made during a debriefing unless otherwise authorized by policy, law 
or a valid court order. 

Attendance at the debriefing shall only include those members of the Department directly involved 
in the incident, which can include support personnel (e.g., [dispatchers, other civilian personnel). 
Family or other support personnel may attend with the concurrence of those involved in the 
incident. The debriefing shall be closed to the public and should be closed to all other members 
of the Department, including supervisory and Office of Internal Affairs personnel. 

 
310.10   REPORTING 
If the death of an individual occurs in the Bay Area Rapid Transit Police Department jurisdiction 
and qualifies to be reported to the state as a justifiable homicide or an in-custody death, the Patrol 
Bureau Commander will ensure that the Records Supervisor is provided with enough information 
to meet the reporting requirements (Penal Code § 196; Penal Code § 13022; Government Code 
§ 12525). 
 
310.11 RETURN TO ACTIVE DUTY 

  The following checklist guideline outlines the protocol which should be followed involved officer’s 
return to active duty after an Officer Involved Shooting where death/serious bodily injury occurs.   

 
• The involved officer is not cleared for regular patrol duties until results of the mandatory drug 

testing clears the involved officer for duty. 
• The involved officer undergoes a session with a Department approved psychologist and 

cleared to return to work. 
• The Chief of Police or designee may keep the officer from active duty if they believe that the 

placing of the officer on active duty poses an unreasonable risk to the Department, the 
employee, other employees, or the public. 

• The Chief of Police or designee may keep the officer from active duty if a preliminary 
determination appears to show that the employee’s conduct was not in compliance with 
Policy.  

• A member of Staff should consult with the involved officer to confirm if they feel ready to 
return to full duty.   
• The involved officer shall complete a range qualification course with the Department 
Rangemaster.  



S.F. Bay Area Rapid Transit District Police Department 
Arrest and Control 

 
Arrest and Control Training 

 CPTN - 2016 
 
 
 
MISSION: Arrest and Control instructors will provide officers of this department with Arrest 

and Control training. 
 
GOAL: By utilizing hands-on guidance, Arrest and Control instructors will teach the 

Officers of this department the proper control holds, searching and handcuffing 
techniques. 

 
1. Lecture                                                                                                 III (g,j,k) 
  

• Roundtable (any questions from participants on UOF policy/Handcuffing policy – 
participants required to review prior to training). 

• Responsibility of Officer to notify supervisor on use of force 
• Searching Techniques 

 Discuss pat search, full search incident to arrest 
 Review Policy 322.4 – Search Protocol, 322.5 – Documentation     

--Protocol for searching subjects of opposite sex 
 

• De-escalation Techniques (Tactical Communications) 
• Critical Decision Making 

- Collect information 
- Assess situation, threats, risks 
- Identify options, determine best course of action (Do I have to act 

now, or can I wait?) 
- Act, review, and re-assess 

• Active Listening 
- 80-20 rule (80% listening, 20% speaking) 
- Ask open-ended questions 
- Demonstrate you are listening 

• Verbal Communication  
- Use team concept 
- Establish rapport 
- Provide clear, single questions/commands 

 
 

 



• Graham v. Connor 
1. Officer with similar training and experience 
2. In similar situation 
3. Act in similar manner 

Not best decision, but reasonable one 
• Scott v. Heinrich 

                  1.   Force Options 
                  2.   No need for escalation of force options 

 
• Safety Points: 

o Injuries (Past, Present, & Future) 
o Spatial  Awareness 
o Dangerous Conditions 

• Mindset (i.e., awareness)  
• Report Articulation 
• MVR Activation 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Warm-up                   III (a) 

• Jumping jacks (25) 
• Neck rotations 
• Shoulder rotations 
• Arm rotations 
• Side bends (left and right).  4 reps. 
• Trunk twists (left and right).  4 reps. 
• Hamstring stretch 
• Quad stretch 
• Lower back stretch 
• Wrist stretches  

 
3.  Break falls                       III (b,f,g,i) 

• Front fall 
• Side fall 
• Back fall 

 
4. Footwork (from POI) – 4 reps each       III (b,h,i) 

• Forward shuffle 
• Rear shuffle 
• Left shuffle 
• Right shuffle 
• Normal pivot 
• Shuffle pivot 
• Progressive pivot 

 



  
 

 
5. Searching/ Handcuffing/ Self-Defense (3 Reps per Officer)  III 
(b,d,e,f,h,i)   
  
 

a) Review Twist lock 
 
b) Quick Cuffing (low risk) 

           1)  Grabbing of fingers 
• Twist-locks (top to bottom; bottom to top)   
• Lower body search 

 
c) Standing Modified (low/med risk) Search; to handcuffing 

   
d) Prone Handcuffing (high risk) 

1) Challenge suspect 
• Handcuffing 
• Search Emphasize nuances (i.e. bear most of own weight, knee not to go past 

upper shoulder, hand off the back, palm facing the feet, finger towards the 
shoulder). 

• Controlling hands thumb must wrap around suspects hand, fingers. 
 

f) Assailant swings at officer 
• Arm Sweep takedown 

 
 
  

8.  Scenario(s) 
 

• 5150 contact at Powell Street Station.   
Officers will simulate MVR activation, use de-escalation techniques, and 
demonstrate proper searching and handcuffing techniques.     

 
 
 
REMINDER 
A memo must be completed and submitted to supervisor if an Officer is unable to perform 
any of the above listed Defensive Tactics/Arrest Control techniques.  
END LESSON 
NOTES: 
   



S.F. Bay Area Rapid Transit District Police Department 
Arrest and Control 

 
Arrest and Control Training 

 2017 AOT Curriculum 
 
 
 
MISSION: Arrest and Control instructors will provide officers of this department with 

training regarding Arrest and Control technique as well as Impact Weapons. 
 
GOAL: By utilizing hands-on guidance, Arrest and Control instructors will teach the 

Officers of this department the proper control holds, searching and handcuffing 
techniques. The instructors will give Officers techniques when responding to 
resistance during these techniques.  The training will also include the proper 
techniques for Impact Weapons 

 
1. Lecture                                                                                                 III (g,j,k) 
  

A) Lead discussion of revised Use of Force Policy 300.   
a. Officers are required to document and report all UOFs.   
b. Sergeants have the task of which level of investigation they are to perform. 

B) Clarify administrative vs technical terms  
a. Non-dynamic takedown vs takedown technique taught by staff 

C) Explain development of curriculum to make relevant to students 
a. Curriculum vetted by one year of statistical analysis wherein nearly 75% of the 

UOFs involved Arrest & Control or attempt thereof 
b. Curriculum vetted by observations of UOF Review Board showing deficiencies 

D) Strive for Minimum Force is a valid goal and concept.  Critically analyze the policy and 
emphasize the many contingencies and factors to consider when using force 

 
E) De-escalation Techniques (Tactical Communications) 

a. Critical Decision Making 
i. Collect information 

ii. Assess situation, threats, risks 
iii. Identify options, determine best course of action (Do I have to act now, or 

can I wait?) 
iv. Act, review, and re-assess 

b. On-going evaluation of situation 
i. Before, during, and after UOF 

ii. When to slow down 
iii. Situational awareness of scene – 360 environment 

  



 
c. WIN – What’s Important Now? 

i. Use team concept 
ii. Provide clear, single questions/commands 

 
F) Graham v. Connor 

a. Officer with similar training and experience 
b. In similar situation 
c. Act in similar manner 

i. Not best decision, but reasonable one 
G) Scott v. Heinrich 

a. Force Options 
b. No need for escalation of force options 

H) Safety Points: 
a. Injuries (Past, Present, & Future) 
b. Spatial  Awareness 
c. Dangerous Conditions 

I) Mindset  
a. Full contact chess analogy 
b. What are you prepared to do? 
c. Why are you doing it? 

J) Report Articulation 
K) MVR Activation 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Warm-up                   III (a) 

• Jumping jacks  
• Neck rotations 
• Shoulder rotations 
• Arm rotations 
• Side bends (left and right)   
• Trunk twists (left and right)   
• Hamstring stretch 
• Quad stretch 
• Lower back stretch 
• Wrist stretches  

 
3.  Break falls                       III (b,f,g,i) 

• Front fall 
• Side fall 
• Back fall 

  



 
4. Footwork (from POI)          III (b,h,i) 

• Forward shuffle 
• Rear shuffle 
• Left shuffle 
• Right shuffle 
• Shuffle pivot 

 
  

 
 
5. Control Holds/ Searching/ Handcuffing/ Self Defense III (b,d,e,f,h,i)   
  

A) Review Twist Lock and Twist Lock Search 
a. Response to Resistance 

i. Disengage, transition to tools 
ii. Apply Twist Lock to disrupt Suspect’s actions 

iii. Critical Response: Takedown 
1. Twist Lock Circle Down 
2. Twist Lock TD to the Rear/ disengage 
3. Twist Lock Throw (most injurious) 

 
b. Quick Cuffing (low risk) 

i. Grabbing of fingers 
ii. Twist-locks (top to bottom; bottom to top)   

iii. Response to Resistance:  
1. For “Grabbing of Fingers” – disengage (push) and transition to 

weapons 
2. For Twist-lock grips  

iv. apply Twist Lock, de-escalate 
1. disengage  
2. take down 
3. disengage and transition 

 
c. Standing Modified (low/med risk) Search 

i. review: systematic, quadrant, crushing search 
ii. Response to Resistance during search 

1. disengage, de-escalate, transition to tools 
2. take down to rear (straight pull down) 
3. shoulder compression 
4. Handcuffing  

a. emphasize one-person technique 
b. one officer should focus on technique; one officer should 

focus on de-escalating 
iii. Twist Lock option with review of responses to resistance 



iv. Rear Wrist Lock option 
1. emphasize pre-planning (clearing wrists) 
2. technique heavy option; requires more practice 

B) Moving seated patron 
a. Review/ Introduce Pressure Points 

i. Mastoid  
ii. Salivary Gland 

iii. Brachial Plexus 
iv. Radial Nerve 
v. Emphasize bracing and expected reactions 

b. Review last year’s technique 
i. Replace Pressure Points for officer with cross face pin 

 
 

 
  

6.  Ground Defense 
A) Discuss Critical Attack Positions and responses 

a. Officer prone with suspect mounted is the most vulnerable position 
i. Officer is defensive only and must explode to gain position 

ii. Explosive rolls/ twist to prone position 
b. Officer supine with mounted suspect is second most vulnerable position 

i. Officer is defensive only and must explode to gain position or fight for 
neutral 

ii. Suspect mounted below belt: shrimp to escape 
iii. Suspect mounted above belt: review escape technique 
iv. Fight for neutral: double under-hooks or over/under grab and keep close 

c. Officer Ground Defense position 
i. Emphasize maintaining distance/ fighting to get up 

ii. Target suspect’s lower legs and knees with kicks 
iii. Importance of movement 

 
 
7.  Ground Control 

A) Hip Press + movement: This is maintaining a neutral ground position 
B) Review:  

a. Leg Trap  
b. Figure-4 Leg Lock (emphasize locking ankle is knee joint for maximum 

effectiveness) 
c. 2 officer response exercise 

i. one officer working Hip Press Technique 
ii. second officer enters exercise utilizing Leg Trap and/ or Fig-4 Leg Lock 

iii. second officer should announce presence and intent 
 
  



8.  Impact Weapons 
A) Target Zones 

a. Zone 1, define 
b. Zone 2, define 
c. Joints and areas where skins is closest to the bone (lower arms and legs) are 

preferred 
d. How to articulate in a report  

i. Example: I performed two zone 2 strikes.  One strike apparently struck the 
suspect’s thigh area causing a deep bruise.  One strike apparently struck 
the suspect’s lower arms. This was an apparent reflexive defense move by 
the suspect and resulted in a broken arm.   

B) Areas to Avoid 
a. Head, Neck 
b. Spine 
c. Direct Jabs to the heart 
d. Groin 
e. Areas to Avoid unless Lethal Force is justified 

C) Draws 
a. Cross Draw  
b. Power Draw 
c. Stepping forward or stepping back 
d. Advantages of gun-side forward strikes 

i. Distance 
ii. Gun protection 

iii. Back health 
D) Zone 1 strikes breakdown 

a. Forehand 
b. Backhand 
c. Snap Strikes 
d. Forehand to Backhand 
e. With footwork 
f. With commands 
g. On standing bags with holder (safety 1st) 

E) Zone 2 strikes breakdown 
a. All of Zone 1 with a lower center of gravity 
b. Mixed strikes (Zones 1 & 2) 

F) Alternate strikes 
a. One-handed jab 
b. Two-handed jab 
c. Zone 2 strike from “on guard” 
d. Chop strikes from “on guard”  

  



 
G) Expandable Baton 

a. Draws 
i. On-side 

1. Hi 
2. Low 

ii. Off-side  
1. Hi  
2. Low 

b. Expanded strikes are same as Zone 1/ Zone 2 strikes above 
H) Closed format/ Emergency Impact Weapon Strikes  

a. Yawara style (especially for flashlights) 
i. Jab 

ii. Backhand  
iii. Bottom Fist (Hammer Fist)  
iv. Slap Strike 
v. Palm Up Hook  

vi. Palm Down Hook 
I) In-hand retentions 

a. Circle-In/ Circle-Out 
b. Figure-8 

 
 
REMINDER 
A memo must be completed and submitted to supervisor if an Officer is unable to perform 
any of the above listed Defensive Tactics/Arrest Control techniques.  
END LESSON 
NOTES: 
   



S.F. Bay Area Rapid Transit District Police Department 
Arrest and Control 

 
Impact Weapons Training 

 2018 AOT Curriculum 
 
 
 
MISSION: Arrest and Control instructors will provide officers of this department with 

training regarding Impact Weapons. 
 
GOAL: By utilizing hands-on guidance, Arrest and Control instructors will teach the 

Officers of this department the proper use of Impact Weapons. The instructors 
will give Officers techniques when responding to resistance during these 
techniques.  The training will also include the proper techniques for de-escalation. 

 
1. Lecture                                                                                                 III (g,j,k) 
  

A) Lead discussion of revised Use of Force Policy 300 & 308.   
a. Officers are required to document and report all UOFs.   
b. Sergeants have the task of which level of investigation they are to perform. 

B) Explain development of curriculum to make relevant to students 
a. Curriculum vetted by one year of statistical analysis wherein nearly 75% of the 

UOFs involved Arrest & Control or attempt thereof 
b. Curriculum vetted by observations of UOF Review Board showing deficiencies 

C) Strive for Minimum Force is a valid goal and concept.  Critically analyze the policy and 
emphasize the many contingencies and factors to consider when using force 

 
D) De-escalation Techniques (Tactical Communications) 

a. Critical Decision Making 
i. Collect information 

ii. Assess situation, threats, risks 
iii. Identify options, determine best course of action (Do I have to act now, or 

can I wait?) 
iv. Act, review, and re-assess 

b. On-going evaluation of situation 
i. Before, during, and after UOF 

ii. When to slow down 
iii. Situational awareness of scene – 360 environment 

  



 
c. WIN – What’s Important Now? 

i. Use team concept 
ii. Provide clear, single questions/commands 

iii. Aeronautical parallel:  
1. Aviate, Navigate, Communicate vs Police terms: Solve the 

immediate problem, Confirm location, Communicate relevant 
information 

2. This has been an issue in UOF reviews wherein officers:  
a. Fail to see and solve immediate threat of combative subject 
b. Fail to report accurate location or best information  
c. Communicate non-relevant or unimportant information at 

the wrong time 
E) Graham v. Connor 

a. Officer with similar training and experience 
b. In similar situation 
c. Act in similar manner 

i. Not best decision, but reasonable one 
F) Scott v. Heinrich 

a. Force Options 
b. No need for escalation of force options 

G) Safety Points: 
a. Injuries (Past, Present, & Future) 
b. Spatial Awareness 
c. Dangerous Conditions 

H) Mindset  
a. Full contact chess analogy 
b. What are you prepared to do? 
c. Why are you doing it? 
d. Just because you can, should you? 

I) Report Articulation 
a. Policy 300.3 lists 26 factors to consider when using force  
b. Policy 300.2.2 list 6 de-escalation techniques to consider  

J) MVR Activation: especially in context of current UOF reporting 
 

K) Target Zones 
a. Zone 1, define 
b. Zone 2, define 
c. Joints and areas where skins is closest to the bone (lower arms and legs) are 

preferred 
d. How to articulate in a report  

i. Example: I performed two zone 2 strikes.  One strike apparently struck the 
suspect’s thigh area causing a deep bruise.  One strike apparently struck 
the suspect’s lower arms. This was an apparent reflexive defense move by 
the suspect and resulted in a broken arm.   



L) Areas to Avoid 
a. Head, Neck 
b. Spine 
c. Direct Jabs to the heart 
d. Groin 
e. Areas to Avoid unless Lethal Force is justified 

 
 
 
1.  Warm-up                   III (a) 

• Jumping jacks  
• Neck rotations 
• Shoulder rotations 
• Arm rotations 
• Side bends (left and right)   
• Trunk twists (left and right)   
• Hamstring stretch 
• Quad stretch 
• Lower back stretch 
• Wrist stretches  

 
2. Footwork (from POI)          III (b,h,i) 

• Forward shuffle 
• Rear shuffle 
• Left shuffle 
• Right shuffle 
• Shuffle pivot 
• Behind-you strike 

 
3. Impact Weapons 

A) Target Zones 
f. Zone 1, define 
g. Zone 2, define 
h. Joints and areas where skins is closest to the bone (lower arms and legs) are 

preferred 
i. How to articulate in a report  

i. Example: I performed two zone 2 strikes.  One strike apparently struck the 
suspect’s thigh area causing a deep bruise.  One strike apparently struck 
the suspect’s lower arms. This was an apparent reflexive defense move by 
the suspect and resulted in a broken arm.   

B) Areas to Avoid 
a. Head, Neck 
b. Spine 
c. Direct Jabs to the heart 



d. Groin 
e. Areas to Avoid unless Lethal Force is justified 

C) Draws 
a. Cross Draw  
b. Power Draw 
c. Stepping forward or stepping back 
d. Advantages of gun-side forward strikes 

i. Distance 
ii. Gun protection 

iii. Back health 
D) Zone 1 strikes breakdown 

a. Forehand 
b. Backhand 
c. Snap Strikes 
d. Forehand to Backhand 
e. With footwork 
f. With commands 
g. On standing bags  

E) Zone 2 strikes breakdown 
a. All of Zone 1 with a lower center of gravity 
b. Mixed strikes (Zones 1 & 2) 

F) Alternate strikes 
a. One-handed jab 
b. Two-handed jab 
c. Zone 2 strike from “on guard” 
d. Chop strikes from “on guard”  

G) Expandable Baton 
a. Draws 

i. On-side 
1. Hi 
2. Low 

ii. Off-side  
1. Hi  
2. Low 

b. Expanded strikes are same as Zone 1/ Zone 2 strikes above 
H) Closed format/ Emergency Impact Weapon Strikes  

a. Yawara style (especially for flashlights) 
i. Jab 

ii. Backhand  
iii. Bottom Fist (Hammer Fist)  
iv. Slap Strike 
v. Palm Up Hook  

vi. Palm Down Hook 
  



 
I) Retentions 

a. In-hand Circle-In/ Circle-Out 
b. In-hand Figure-8 
c. 3 From the Ring 

4. Introduction to FIST Suit 

A) Target Zones 
 1) Zone 1: chest pad 
 2) Zone 2: thigh pad 
B) Non-Target Areas 

  1) Head & neck 
  2) Back 
  3) Any and all non-padded areas 
 C) Striking 
  1) start at 75% power 
  2) finish at 100% 
  3) The acceleration should be less than 10 strikes per student 
 
REMINDER 
A memo must be completed and submitted to supervisor if an Officer is unable to perform 
any of the above listed Defensive Tactics/Arrest Control techniques.  
END LESSON 
NOTES: 



S.F. Bay Area Rapid Transit District Police Department 
Arrest and Control 

 
Arrest and Control Training 

 2018 AOT Curriculum 
 
 
 
MISSION: Arrest and Control instructors will provide officers of this department with 

training regarding Arrest and Control technique as well as Impact Weapons. 
 
GOAL: By utilizing hands-on guidance, Arrest and Control instructors will teach the 

Officers of this department the proper control holds, searching and handcuffing 
techniques. The instructors will give Officers techniques when responding to 
resistance during these techniques.  The training will also include the proper 
techniques for Impact Weapons 

 
1. Lecture                                                                                                 III (g,j,k) 
  

A) Lead discussion of revised Use of Force Policy 300.   
a. Officers are required to document and report all UOFs.   
b. Sergeants have the task of which level of investigation they are to perform. 
c. On-going changes and revision – read carefully and discuss as updates come out. 

B) Clarify administrative vs technical terms  
a. Non-dynamic takedown vs takedown technique taught by staff 

C) Explain development of curriculum to make relevant to students 
a. Curriculum vetted by one year of statistical analysis wherein nearly 75% of the 

UOFs involved Arrest & Control or attempt thereof 
b. Curriculum vetted by observations of UOF Review Board showing deficiencies 

D) Strive for Minimum Force is a valid goal and concept.  Critically analyze the policy and 
emphasize the many contingencies and factors to consider when using force 

 
E) De-escalation Techniques  

a. Critical Decision Making 
i. Collect information 

ii. Assess situation, threats, risks 
iii. Identify options, determine best course of action (Do I have to act now, or 

can I wait?) 
iv. Act, review, and re-assess 

b. On-going evaluation of situation 
i. Before, during, and after UOF 

ii. When to slow down 
iii. Situational awareness of scene – 360 environment 



 
c. WIN – What’s Important Now? 

i. Flying terms: Aviate, Navigate, Communicate vs Police terms: Solve the 
immediate problem, Confirm location, Communicate relevant information 

1. This has been an issue in UOF reviews wherein officers:  
a. Fail to see and solve immediate threat of combative subject 
b. Fail to report accurate location or best information  
c. Communicate non-relevant or unimportant information at 

the wrong time 
ii. Use team concept 

1. Contact & cover 
2. Switch roles if it’s more effective 

iii. Provide clear, single questions/commands 
iv. Actively listen to suspect and use that information 

d. Just because can you do it, should you?  Do you need to? 
 

F) Case Law review:  
a. Graham v. Connor 

i. Officer with similar training and experience 
ii. In similar situation 

iii. Act in similar manner 
1. Not best decision, but reasonable one 

b. Scott v. Heinrich 
i. Force Options 

ii. No need for escalation of force options 
G) Safety Points: 

a. Injuries (Past, Present, & Future) 
b. Spatial Awareness 
c. Dangerous Conditions 

H) Mindset  
a. Full contact chess analogy 
b. What are you prepared to do? 
c. Why are you doing it? 
d. Just because can you do, should you?  Do you need to? 

I) Report Articulation 
a. Policy 300.3 lists 26 factors to consider when using force  
b. Policy 300.2.2 list 6 de-escalation techniques to consider  

J) MVR Activation: especially in context of current UOF reporting 
  



______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Warm-up                   III (a) 

• Jumping jacks  
• Neck rotations 
• Shoulder rotations 
• Arm rotations 
• Side bends (left and right)   
• Trunk twists (left and right)   
• Hamstring stretch 
• Quad stretch 
• Lower back stretch 
• Wrist stretches  

 
3.  Break falls                       III (b,f,g,i) 

• Front fall 
• Side fall 
• Back fall 

 
4. Footwork (from POI)          III (b,h,i) 

• Forward shuffle 
• Rear shuffle 
• Left shuffle 
• Right shuffle 
• Shuffle pivot 

 
  
  



 
 

 
5. Control Holds/ Searching/ Handcuffing/ Self Defense III (b,d,e,f,h,i)   
  

A) Review Twist Lock and Twist Lock Search 
a. Response to Resistance 

i. Disengage, transition to tools 
ii. Apply Twist Lock to disrupt Suspect’s actions 

iii. Critical Response: Takedown 
1. Twist Lock Circle Down  

a. cross shoulder handcuffing 
2. Twist Lock TD to the Rear/ disengage 

iv. Handcuffing: Driving method & Wrist-Roll 
 

b. Quick Cuffing (low risk) 
i. Grabbing of fingers 

ii. Twist-locks (top to bottom; bottom to top)   
iii. Response to Resistance:  

1. For “Grabbing of Fingers” – disengage (push) and transition to 
weapons 

2. For Twist-lock grips  
a. apply Twist Lock, de-escalate 

i. disengage  
ii. take down 

iii. disengage and transition 
 

c. Standing Modified (low/med risk) Search 
i. review:  

1. systematic, quadrant, crushing search 
2. bowed suspect body 

ii. Response to Resistance during search 
1. disengage, de-escalate, transition to tools 
2. take down to rear (straight pull down) 
3. Leg Sweep 
4. Elbow Compression 
5. Handcuffing  

a. Contact & Cover (one-person) technique 
b. 2-officers with double Rear Wrist Locks (RWLs) 

iii. Twist Lock option with review of responses to resistance 
iv. Rear Wrist Lock option 

1. emphasize pre-planning (clearing wrists) 
2. technique heavy option; requires more practice 

  



 
B) Moving seated patron 

a. Review/ Introduce Pressure Points 
i. Mastoid  

ii. Salivary Gland 
iii. Brachial Plexus 
iv. Radial Nerve 
v. Emphasize bracing and expected reactions 

b. Review last year’s technique 
i. Replace Pressure Points for officer with cross face pin 

 
 

 
  

6.  Ground Control 
A) Hip Press + movement: This is maintaining a neutral ground position 
B) Review:  

a. Leg Trap  
b. Figure-4 Leg Lock (emphasize locking ankle in knee joint for maximum 

effectiveness) 
c. 2 officer response exercise 

i. one officer working Hip Press Technique 
ii. second officer enters exercise utilizing Leg Trap and/ or Fig-4 Leg Lock 

iii. second officer should announce presence and intent 
 
 

7.  Personal Body Weapons 
A) Target selection 

a. Hard hand = soft target vs soft hand = hard target 
b. Lower body strike targets: identify and define 

B) Proper fist + wrist position = push-up exercise 
C) Palm Heel 

a. Thumb safety  
D) Under Punch/ Upper cut  

a. Emphasize targets 
E) Hammer Fist 
F) Elbows 

a. Close quarters 
b. Multiple angles 

G) Knee strikes 
a. Duty belt limitations 

  



H) Extended Knee Strike/ Roundhouse 
I) Straight Kick 
J) Push Kick 
K) Cross Kick 

 
 

 

 
REMINDER 
A memo must be completed and submitted to supervisor if an Officer is unable to perform 
any of the above listed Defensive Tactics/Arrest Control techniques.  
END LESSON 
NOTES: 
   



S.F. Bay Area Rapid Transit District Police Department 
Arrest and Control 

 
Arrest and Control Training 

 2018 AOT Curriculum 
Second four hours 

 
 
 
MISSION: Arrest and Control instructors will provide officers of this department with 

training regarding Arrest and Control technique as well as Impact Weapons. 
 
GOAL: By utilizing hands-on guidance, Arrest and Control instructors will teach the 

Officers of this department the proper control holds, searching and handcuffing 
techniques. The instructors will give Officers techniques when responding to 
resistance during these techniques.  The training will also include the proper 
techniques for Impact Weapons 

 
1. Lecture                                                                                                 III (g,j,k) 
  

A) Lead discussion of revised Use of Force Policy 300.   
a. Officers are required to document and report all UOFs.   
b. Sergeants have the task of which level of investigation they are to perform. 
c. On-going changes and revision – read carefully and discuss as updates come out. 

B) Clarify administrative vs technical terms  
a. Non-dynamic takedown vs takedown technique taught by staff 

C) Explain development of curriculum to make relevant to students 
a. Curriculum vetted by one year of statistical analysis wherein nearly 75% of the 

UOFs involved Arrest & Control or attempt thereof 
b. Curriculum vetted by observations of UOF Review Board showing deficiencies 

D) Strive for Minimum Force is a valid goal and concept.  Critically analyze the policy and 
emphasize the many contingencies and factors to consider when using force 

 
E) De-escalation Techniques (Tactical Communications) 

a. Critical Decision Making 
i. Collect information 

ii. Assess situation, threats, risks 
iii. Identify options, determine best course of action (Do I have to act now, or 

can I wait?) 
iv. Act, review, and re-assess 

b. On-going evaluation of situation 
i. Before, during, and after UOF 

ii. When to slow down 



iii. Situational awareness of scene – 360 environment 

 
c. WIN – What’s Important Now? 

i. Flying terms: Aviate, Navigate, Communicate vs Police terms: Solve the 
immediate problem, Confirm location, Communicate relevant information 

1. This has been an issue in UOF reviews wherein officers:  
a. Fail to see and solve immediate threat of combative subject 
b. Fail to report accurate location or best information  
c. Communicate non-relevant or unimportant information at 

the wrong time 
ii. Use team concept 

1. Contact & cover 
2. Switch roles if it’s more effective 

iii. Provide clear, single questions/commands 
iv. Actively listen to suspect and use that information 

d. Just because can you do, should you?  Do you need to? 
 

F) Case Law review:  
a. Graham v. Connor 

i. Officer with similar training and experience 
ii. In similar situation 

iii. Act in similar manner 
1. Not best decision, but reasonable one 

b. Scott v. Heinrich 
i. Force Options 

ii. No need for escalation of force options 
G) Safety Points: 

a. Injuries (Past, Present, & Future) 
b. Spatial  Awareness 
c. Dangerous Conditions 

H) Mindset  
a. Full contact chess analogy 
b. What are you prepared to do? 
c. Why are you doing it? 
d. Just because can you do, should you?  Do you need to? 

I) Report Articulation 
a. Policy 300.3 lists 26 factors to consider when using force  
b. Policy 300.2.2 list 6 de-escalation techniques to consider  

J) MVR Activation: especially in context of current UOF reporting 
  



______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Warm-up                   III (a) 

• Jumping jacks  
• Neck rotations 
• Shoulder rotations 
• Arm rotations 
• Side bends (left and right)   
• Trunk twists (left and right)   
• Hamstring stretch 
• Quad stretch 
• Lower back stretch 
• Wrist stretches  

 
3.  Break falls                       III (b,f,g,i) 

• Front fall 
• Side fall 
• Back fall 

 
4. Footwork (from POI)          III (b,h,i) 

• Forward shuffle 
• Rear shuffle 
• Left shuffle 
• Right shuffle 
• Shuffle pivot 

 
  
5.  Ground Defense 

A) Discuss Critical Attack Positions and responses 
a. Officer prone with suspect mounted is the most vulnerable position 

i. Officer is defensive only and must explode to gain position 
ii. Explosive roll/ twist to prone position 

iii. Leg supported roll (1/2 climb) 
iv. Push back into 4-point squat 

b. Officer supine with mounted suspect is second most vulnerable position 
i. Officer is defensive only and must explode to gain position or fight for 

neutral 
ii. Suspect mounted above belt: review escape technique (Trap-and-Roll) 

iii. Fight for neutral: double under-hooks or over/under grab and keep close 
c. Officer Ground Defense position 

i. Emphasize maintaining distance/ fighting to get up 
ii. Target suspect’s lower legs (knees) with kicks 

iii. Importance of movement 



 
 
6.  Ground Control 

A) Hip Press + movement: This is maintaining a neutral ground position 
B) Review:  

a. Leg Trap  
b. Figure-4 Leg Lock (emphasize locking ankle is knee joint for maximum 

effectiveness) 
c. 2 officer response exercise 

i. one officer working Hip Press Technique 
ii. second officer enters exercise utilizing Leg Trap and/ or Fig-4 Leg Lock 

iii. second officer should announce presence and intent 
 

7. Hi-Risk Stops 
A) Hi-Risk Prone 

a. Most current Force Science research shows that an untrained basic academy 
student can get up in 1-2 seconds.  It doesn’t matter if palms up or down, legs or 
ankles crossed.  Negligibly slower if legs are crossed and knees bent with ankles 
toward the buttocks.  Lesson: The position may not be as advantageous as an 
officer believes.  Theory of the overly-compliant suspect (luring).   

b. Clear directions. Pros/Cons of using right/left vs one knee then the other & look 
toward me or look away.  One voice. 

c. Prone handcuffing review 
B) Hi-Risk Kneeling 

a. Suspect faces away, hands on the head, proper kneeling position is erect – do not 
allow suspect to make a base (TASER video example) 

b. Ankles are not crossed until contact made – weapons safety.   
 
REMINDER 

A memo must be completed and submitted to supervisor if an Officer is unable to perform 
any of the above listed Defensive Tactics/Arrest Control techniques.  
END LESSON 
NOTES: 
 



��������� 	
����
��
�����
���������������
�����	���������������
��
�

���������������������� !"#$!#$"%�����������������&��'��(�������)��������������(��	
����
��
�����
��������������
����� *����+�,����-�.#

/01�23�42561���78���9/:9;<=�>?@�<A;9=����	��������������
�����B���������������������
+���
�����������+������������
�����(�����+�
��������'��C++�������
����������
��������������������������
��������
�������)����������������������
���)�������������
�����&�'��������
����������������������
�������������������������)�����������
��������
�����
����������������+�+����(��������
����-(����������������
���������������&��������
�����-���
�
������
������(�+��������������+�����)����&��+�
��(��'��������
�������������(���������������D����������B��(�
���������������E
�
��&'�������F"%G%HI%!�*'D'�JG.�
�����������������&����
������������������
����
��
��
�����
����
)'������
)K�+��������������+�K�������L�����
����)����
)���+���������++���������
�����������������)�����������������������+������
������
��������&�����������������
��+���'�������
��M��+
���������
���
�������������
���)������������������
����
+���
�����������(���B������'��������������&������������������������
���
(��������+�+���'�N����������������)
����������+�������
���
��������������+��
���
(���+�������(��
����������
�������
�������&������(���+��������
����������������������������������������������
M��������������������
���+������
�����
��
������-(�
�����
����
���
(����
���'C++�������
��������������
��
�������+�+������
���
���
(���
���
��������
����&�������+
���
����������
����������&���(�������++����
������������+������&�������
����������
��������
����
)��+��������������'�C++�������������&������������������
��
�������+�+����������
�'J!!'"'"����K,OPO�OCPD��+�����������
��������������������������Q@1RSTU�32561�V�,�����
���
(���
������
����
�����������������
���
���(��
���
����M���������+�
��������
�����&������������W��'41R0XYT1�-��
�
(����+�(�������������
������������������+�����
����&��
��������
����
)��+���������(W����&��)�����������
�����������M���������++������(���
���F�H'42561�-�����
�����
������+�������
��������L�������
�������������
��
��������)�
��������
����������'Z1[X\X]R\1�TR̂ �1_32561]1_\�2Ỳ16\Xa1�-�K++����
��
)+���
��������������������
��b��&����������
��������&�������
��b���&��������������������+�
���(�����++����b������+������+��������������+-��+����b��
���������
����)����
��
)+������b������&����
�������+�����W�����������+$�����+'cX_X]RT�R]2d_\�23�32561�_16100R5U�-�������)������&����+�+����)����������
�����+��(W����&����
���
(���+������
�����������
������++����
��
������
����&��
��
)+����(W����&��)����������
�����������M���������'



�����������	
������
�����
�����	�����������������
��������������������

 �	��
!"��#�$
	��%�## �&'()*')*(+%������
!"��������,��-��.�
�"���/
�"�	���
��
��.�������������	
������
�����
����	������ 0����1�2�����3�45

6789:;<:=>�?7@A;�3�����		�
���
���1�1������"���
�����������.�����
�
	��������
�������������������.����
����
B��
"�����1�����"����,�������
����.��
���
C�����"����.�����
�������3������1����-D;@E78<=�F7:>�G;<H78E�3�����11
���I�������1�"
�*"���.����	���%�
����
!�.�������
�
�������"��%1���%�B��%���.�/%��"������%�"
	%����%���!����"����.��������1�"
!"�,����
���B
��
�����!������1��J
�	���K����!�
���������1�����.C���-D@7H7@LM78<=ML>�3� ��
�����/"��"�����	���
�����������1�1�����
��	��	���
���������		��	�
�������"�������
����1��"���
����������%������N�
�����11
�����������
����/"��"����������
,������������31������	�
�������1���
.�������
B�������.���11���
,�-����	���
����1�������������
�	����N���1����O��11
���������������	��
���1����%����
�����/
�"��"
��	��
��-P;<E78<Q=;�F;=M;R�3����.C���
,��.��
�1�������
���.���"��1���������
�����������������.���,�
��.�������"���11
��������"���
���J�3��������/
�"����"
��
!"�K����,
�/���1�����"�	���	���
,���1���������.���	������11
����
��"��������
����
�%�!�
����.���"��	�
�
	��������1���"
��"
��	��
��-P;<E78<Q=;�?7@A;�3����.C���
,�����������1�1�����,
�/���1�����"��	���	���
,���1���������.���11
���%�/
�"�����"��.��1
���1�&'*&'�"
��
!"�%����.��������"�������
����1��"���
�����������B�/������	����
,���.���"���11
��������"���
��-S;@M7TE�F7:M=>�U8VT@>�3���.��
���
C�����"���������������.����
����
�B��1�����"O�����������
���%	��������
�1
!������O������������
���!3�������������
�	�
������1��"��1���
�
!��1����.��
�����.��������!�-WXXYZ���D[\U]̂�"�������1�1�����.����/��1��������	�������
������������1���
�
���������%�.��"�����"��	�.�
��������"����/��1�������������
��-�_11
���������
,��,���������
���.��
��
�����������,��
���
������
�����%�/"��/�������%���������������.���1�����
������
!������"�
�����
��-_11
����������"�,������������
!��1%����������		���
��
��1��%��"�
�����"��
�������
�
���
��-�"
��
����	��
����������/
�"����	��������,�����
!����
������/"
����!�!���
��"��	��1�������1���/��1�����������
��-�"����	�����������!
̀���������	������"��,������1�����"�����
1������
!
���/
�"����	��C��
���������-�a���
!��11
�����/
�"��"�����"��
����������������.���1�����������	��������"��	�.�
�/��1������N�
������
���
!%��,�����
�����������1���.����
!��1�����
�������-_11
������"�������������"����������1�1������"���������.����		��������������!
,���"��1��������
�����������	����
,���.���"���11
��������"���
����1��"���,�����������	�
�"�����!
�
�������/�1��������	��	���-�_11
�������������
,����������"���

�����������1�1�������������-�"��������.�������1�1�����/
���.��C��!���1�����"��	���	���
,���1���������.����11
�������"����������"���
����1��"��
�
���-�����,�����
���1�������.���������������/�1����"��1�����"���11
����������1���1�����������B���	�
�3���������
�
����.�����"���������1�1������"���������.��



�����������	
������
�����
�����	�����������������
��������������������

 �	��
!"��#�$
	��%�## �&'()*')*(+%������
!"��������,��-��.�
�"���/
�"�	���
��
��.�������������	
������
�����
����	������ 0����1�2�����3�4+

�		��������������
���	���
�������
����
�%�/
�"��
�
����
1�����
�����
��
������������"����������%�������
������	
�����,��,
!-5
,���"�����	��
����������
��
������	���
����,����	���
.����
����
�����11
�����
!"���������%�11
�������������������������/���3���������
�����
��
�������

!��"���		��	�
���������1�1����
����"�
�
���-6��
�����������!
7����"����
�����������������
���
�/"
�"��11
�����������.���.��
�,���"���
�/�����.��
�	����
�������
�11���
,�������������1��"�������%�/��	���������"����	��,
����.���"���	������-�811
���������1
��
��������11���
,�����������.������
�	��,
����"�
�����	���������	
����1���
!����
�
����"����"���������1���
!-�6����"��
����������%��"�������1����
�	��,
�����,
���������"�����������"������.��������.��������
�
7�����������"����!�����"���������.���		����������������������	�
�"�����!
�
�������/��1��������	��	���-9"
����"�����
������.:���
,���1��,������/��1����������������
������,�
������

�
7��
:���%��"
!�
��"
��	��
�����;�
�������11
������������������.���$	��������	���
.���	"��
����
:����.�1����		��
!�������.���1����-��������
!�1���������
������,���!���"�����.�����
�����������
�
7��%/"��1���
.�������		��	�
���-811
������"�����������1�����/
�"�.
��%�.������	�<�����=���"
�
��������
���
��=����
!
�=���$%���$�����
����
�=������
��������=��!�=����������!���	=��
��.
�
��=�����11
�
��
��/
�"������"����
�
���
���
1
�.���!���	-0����1�1������!�
���,�����.���	�	����
���>���"���%�/
�"�����
�
���
�%��"
����%��������%�	��!��/���%�	��	���/
�"�	"��
��������������
��.
�
�
��%����	��	���/
�"��
�
����?!�
�"�	��1
�
���@��������
��	�.�
������������"���������.�������
1�����"����	�
����		����������.������11���
,�-�6��
������!
7����"����"���.�,���������.������
����		��������A�/�����"���11
���-����,�����
���1�������.���������������/�1����"��1�����"����11
����������1���1�����������A���	�
�3���������
�
����.�����"���������1�1������"���������.����		��������������
���	���
������
����
�%�/
�"��
�
����
1�����
�����
��
������������"�����������%�������
������	
����,��,
!-�"����	�����������!
7����"�������	����������������.
�
���
��"�������1�1�����
�������
�����	�����,
!��"���������1��"�������
�����������
��

!�	��1���
������������-��"
��	��
���"���1������;�
�����
!��������	���
!������,
�/��1�����
��������1��"�������1�1����-B''-&-(����0�C��8�6D�?� ?�?�������1��$����
,��1�����.����/��1��������	�������
������������1����
��������������"������
��%�����,�����
!���
�������1��$����
,��1�����������
�
�����������
��	�.�
��������
�"����	������-�������
!��%�����11
����	����������.���,
!����"����11
������
!�1������"���
���������.������"���/"
�"�
���.:���
,����������.���������"���
������������"���%�/"��1���
.��%
�����������	��,����"�������1��������.���1����-����11
����/"���.���,������"�����	���������1������"����$�������"����!�����1�1�����	���
�����.����/��"����	���	������	�����"�����.���,��
���������	��,
���-



�����������	
������
�����
�����	�����������������
��������������������

 �	��
!"��#�$
	��%�## �&'()*')*(+%������
!"��������,��-��.�
�"���/
�"�	���
��
��.�������������	
������
�����
����	������ 0����1�2�����3�)'

4''-&-&����5356 �#��789��5 :97;056811
������"����������3�������
�����"
<����/"��,���1���
.�������		��	�
���=����	����
����������������
�
�����"�������������1����>�������	��,���
?��
�������"����.?���%��"��	�.�
������"��11
���@�A-��0����1���3�������
�����"
<�������������/�1����"��1�����"����11
����������1���1����������B���	�
�3���������
�
��%�/
�"��
�
����
1�����
�%����
��
������������"�����������%������
������	
�����,��,
!-@�A 811
������"���%�/"��1���
.��%����
��������������"������
����1����
����
�%�������������"�
�����	����������
����		��	�
�����-��811
���������.��?���
1
���
���
!�1���������������%�.������?���
1
���
���
!�1������"���$������������������"�!��
�����
��-@.A ��3�������
�����"
<��������
������,��.���	������
�%�/��
!���������
������3�������
�����"
<���%����"���=����/
!���/��"��	�����1���
�
���>�C/�
�
!����D���.?����>�����
!��
������@����"����"�������
�����!�	A�.��/����"���11
��������"���"����>�����<����
!����
�
��������������@�-!-%��	��
��
E����
��%�������"����"������	��,
����%�!��
�����%����-A���������,���"��
�
���-(- 811
������"���������!
E���"����"�������/
�"���/������	��
�
���"���
������
�������,���!������������/���"���!��������
�����������3������������
����
�-&- 811
������"��������
������,��
�����1��	�
��%�
����
!��������1����������1�����	�
��-4- 811
������"�����	��1�����"�
��/��B�
���������"����,�
���������?��	���
E
!��"�
��/���1��������"����1�����1���"���-F- 811
������"�������
���
�����������������
��������������*����������������������1����-G- 811
������"����������	��������������������
����	���
.����������/"������.?�������.������	�
���������
��
!�������-������.?�����������.����	�.����1��������
!��"���
����
��.��������1������
�������
�
�>������%�	"��
���%���"���
!�
�	�
����>���!��!��.���
��>����!�
������
�>��������
������
�
�%����"�,�����
�
���
���-��"�����
����
������������B���"����.?��������������!�����%.�����������
!�����.?���H���
����
��������.����11
��������������"����.?����������/��11
��������������3�������
�����"
<����/"
�����
��

!�	�.�
������11
�����1���-I- 811
������"��������
�����3�������
�����"
<���%�/"��1���
.�������		��	�
���%�����B��������"��
������������.��������������������,���"��
�
���%�
��11�������,�
����*����

�
E���"������1����-@�A J"�����11
��������!
E����"���������
�����%�	���3�������
����������
������%�����"�����*������!����
��
��%������"���"����"�
��������������
!���
�
,
��������.�"�,�������
�����%�"���11
�����"���%�/"��1���
.�������		��	�
���%����������3����������"���
����
����
!���3�������
����*��� �
�
��7���,��
�����"
<���-5���.�
�"
!� ����
���
��3� ����
���
��/
�"��3���	�
�����.?�����
���1���������11���
,�/"���11
���������.�
�"���		���%������"��	��	���,�
���
����
�%���B�<����
������	��,
�����,
�������1������1�
��������"
�,��,�����������	�
����.�1����������
!����1������	�
��-



�����������	
������
�����
�����	�����������������
��������������������

 �	��
!"��#�$
	��%�## �&'()*')*(+%������
!"��������,��-��.�
�"���/
�"�	���
��
��.�������������	
������
�����
����	������ 0����1�2�����3�)(

4�	��,
�����������
!��������1�1�����
,���
!��
��/
���
�
�������3�������
�������1������	�
��
���������/"��,�����3�������
��/��������	������������
���
�
���-56675���89:;<=>�;<�?@;@=ABC@�;D@�=@9><C9EF@C@>>�<8�8<=:@�"��0
����4������4�	����� �����
�G��"���,-� ����H(+I+J�K+'�0-4-�LIM�"�����"������11
���N������1�1����������.���.O���
,����������.���������"�������
����1��
�����������P�/�����"���11
�������"���
��-��"��������.�������1���	���
�����������1�1����������.��O��!���1�����"��	���	���
,���1��������.����11
�������"������%����"����"��&'*&'�"
��
!"�%����/
�"������!��������"���11
���N�������
!�
����������
,��
�-�"���������
�����������
�/"
�"���1������	�
������.����!�����O���
1
���������"��	�
�
	�������1���"�
�G��"���,-� ���%�.����"�������1��"���1������	�
���������.���		��	�
���%�/�������%��*�����������-�"
��	��
���.�
�����	���"��.�����	�
�
	����
�G��"���,-� ����.�����
!����
�
���%����������
��
,��1��������	��/"
�"����11
���N�������1�1������"����.���,�������-��"����1��������"�����.����
������/"��������

!�/"��"�������		���1�����H����
�������
�����������	���
�J%����
�,�����
!�/"��"������11
����"��������������.���1����-2�������1����G��"���,-� ���QH�J �"����,��
����1��"����
������
����-H.J R"��"����"�����	����	�������
����
�����"���������"����1�����1��"���11
���������"���-H�J R"��"����"�����	����
�����
,�������
��
!����������������	�
!�����,�����������.��1�
!"�-�2�������1�����"�� ��
1��
������� ���QH�J ���	������11
������������������.���1���������11������������%����	��,�������	��������,����������
�����-���	������11
����/"����P�����������	��������P�������������������������������
���1����"
�*"����11�����.���������1����
����������"�����������
���������"�	�����1��"��	�����.�
!���������S�����"�������11
����.����������"���!!���������������"
�*"����
!"��������13��1����.���"�������1�������.���1���������11�����"��������%�	��,�������	��������,����������
������H����� ����T�ILU�J-H.J ���11
����������%�������������1����"��
��%�/
�"������/1��������
��%������������.������	�����H����� ����T�(K+J-���
�
����1�����������1���"�.���������/����.���"
�����
��QH�J V����
���������,��
����1��"���"���������11
����������"���-H.J �"��1���
.
�
��%��11
����%������1�����1��������
,�������������31������	�
��%�
����
!��"��,�
��.
�
����1���3�������
�����"
W�����"����
!"��������������
�
�����"�������������1����%���	��,���
O��
�������"����.O���%��"��	�.�
������"���11
���H�J-H�J R"��"����"��1������	�
��
��	��	���
���������		��	�
��������"�������
����1��"���
����������%���/"��"����������
,�������������31������	�
�������1���
.�������
P�������.���11���
,�-���	���
����1�������������
�	����W����1����S��11
���������������	��
���1����%����
����/
�"��"
��	��
��-



�����������	
������
�����
�����	�����������������
��������������������

 �	��
!"��#�$
	��%�## �&'()*')*(+%������
!"��������,��-��.�
�"���/
�"�	���
��
��.�������������	
������
�����
����	������ 0����1�2�����3�)&

4�5 �"����������1��"��
�
,
�����.�
!���1�����%����������.���	����
,���.���"���11
�������"���
��-4�5 �"����������1��"���11
����	�
�������"�������1�1����-��6	��
1
�����%��
���"���11
����,
������	��
�������������
�������������"���
����
������������1�1����-415 711
���*��.8����1�������4�!�%��
9�%������
,������!�"%��:
�����,��%�
8��
��������
��%���,����1�$"����
�����1��
!��%��"����.����1��11
������,�
��.���,�-���.8����5-4!5 �"���11������1����!���������"��-4"5 6�.8���;�������������������	��
��%�
����
!�����		����*:�/�������"����"�
�����-4
5 ���$
�
����1�/��	��������!������
�	��,
������,
���-485 �"����!�������/"
�"��"����.8����"���.����11���
,����������
������"
�*"����.
�
���������
�����	
���.�
!�������
��-4:5 �"���,�
��.
�
����1���"����	�
�������"�
��	���
.����11���
,����-4�5 6��
��������1��"�����	�������11�������������1����������/
�"��"��
�
,
����-4�5 ���

!�����$	��
�����1��"���11
���-45 �����
���1���
8��������11
����%����	����������"���-4�5 <"��"����"��	������		��������.�����
��
!%������	�
!�����,�����������.��1�
!"�����
������:
!��"���11
���-4	5 �"���
�:����������.���1�������.�������=�������1�����	�-4=5 �"���		���������1���
����
������������1��"����.8���������	���	���������
���1��"���
����
�-4�5 <"��"����"����������1��"��
�
,
�����.�
!���1����������!���������.����		�������	������
��
����"���������"���11
���������"���-4�5 ��
�����������/
�"��"����.8��������/��������1����	��	��
���1���,
�����-4�5 �����"����$
!����
����������-4�5 711
�������������
,����������"���

�����������1�1�������������->''->-(�����?@� 7��#?�@ A��A B@?C0A6��
����	�
�������"
=��������.���11���
,��
��������
!���	"��
������������
,�������
��
!
�
,
����-�711
��������������		����"����	�
����	�
�������"
=����1���/"
�"��"���"�,��������1��������	��������	������3�		��,������

!-�711
�������
�
9
!����	�
����	�
������"
=����"��������
���D4�5 �"����!�������/"
�"��"���		�
���
���1��"�����"
=�������.������������!
,���"����,����1���
�����-4.5 <"��"����"��	�����������	���/
�"��"���
����
�������������1��"���11
���4�5 <"��"����"��	�����"���.���!
,����11
�
����		����
���������	��-�"���		�
���
���1����	�
����	�
�������"
=����"����.���
����
���������"���11
���������
����"������	�
����"���.�����"
�,��-



�����������	
������
�����
�����	�����������������
��������������������

 �	��
!"��#�$
	��%�## �&'()*')*(+%������
!"��������,��-��.�
�"���/
�"�	���
��
��.�������������	
������
�����
����	������ 0����1�2�����3�)4

4''-4-&����5�678�#��7�9�:5��786��������.����/��	�����
;��%�	��"��%��
1������;
�;��1���/"
�"��"���11
����"�������
,����	������3�		��,������

!%�����.�������/"���"���11
����������.���.��
�,����"����"�������1���"�1������		�����������������1���"�������!
�
�������/��1��������	��	���-��������.����/��	�����
;��%�	��"��%����;
�;������"��������1��"��"���%���;�����	
�����	��"
.
���-��"�������$��	�
������"
��	��"
.
�
��/�����.��������$
!����
�����������/"��������1�����
��<���
1
������������.��-4''-4-4��� ��7�=�� 78��7#�>7#��"�������1��"�������
��������
��
��	��"
.
���-���"�������$��	�
������"
��	��"
.
�
��/�����.�������$
!����
�����������/"���������1�����
��<���
1
������������.��-4''-4-?���065�72�27� 5��7�65=@5�5A=�58 5=�!�����%��11
�������������������.���1����������/1�������
B���,
�����������	��,����"���������
���1��,
����-�>�/�,��%��11
����������
������!���1������
!�1���������������	��,����	�����1�����/����/
!��,
�������������.��-�=��"��
������/"��1�����
������%��11
�����"��������
���
����������������"
C����"��������
����.�����1��/�����"��"���%������
�������	
���
����/"
�"�����������������.����
;��
"�����"���.�����1��/�����"��"����������	
���
��/�����.������
����-�711
���������������!�������������"
C����������"�������!"��.���"����	�������1���"
���	��
1
��	��	���-4''-4-D������:=8E*�5�#79=8E���2=�5���:"��,������11
�������/�*��	�������1
���������
!��"��	��1��������1�"
�*"������
��������1��%����
������;�����	�����
�����������F�"�����	����
����������������������%��"���11
����
��	��������
��/
�"
�	����
����
!"���1��"�����	���G%�
��
�����
�������������1�1������������������1�"��
�
���������.�������
���	��
�����	���-���"���11
�����"�����
������
��"�������
,���1��"���	����"�/��"��/��	��/��������
��"��
�
���%����/��������"��<���
1
���
��1������"����
�-��"����������
���1�"�/��"��/��	��/���������"�����
������
1�����
����"�/��"��/��	�/���	�������-��"���11
�����������
1������	��,
��������������	����
���%�����"����	��,
����/
�����	�������0����1�2�����=,���
!��
��/
�"������	��
!����������
���������
���
��"
��	��
��-:"��,������11
�������/�*��	�������1
���������
!��"��	��1��������1�"
�*"������
���
��"�	��������1���"���%�.����������������"��1
�����������1��%�����
������;�����	�����
����������F�"�����	����
�������������������������G%�
��
��������
�������������1�1������������������1�"��
�
���������.�������
���	��
�����	���-:"��,������11
�������/�*��	�������1
���������
!��"��	��1��������1�"
�*"������
���
��"����	��������1���"���%�
��
��������
�������������1�1�������������������
��
����C�
���-���$��	����1��"�����	���1�
�
����/�����
�����%�.���
������
�
������%��"�������"��1�����	���.�
��
!�������/"������	�����
��������������
!��"�������"-HIIJK���LMNLOP�QRSTM�NUUOVTNWVRXY0����1��������1�����
��<���
1
���
��"��1����/
!��
����������Z



�����������	
������
�����
�����	�����������������
��������������������

 �	��
!"��#�$
	��%�## �&'()*')*(+%������
!"��������,��-��.�
�"���/
�"�	���
��
��.�������������	
������
�����
����	������ 0����1�2�����3�)4

5�6 ���11
�������������������1��������	�������"
�*"�����1������"����1����/"���"�*�"��������.��.��
�,���/�����.����
��
����"������1�����"�������
����.��
���
7���-5.6 ���11
�������������������1�����������	���1���
!���.7����/"���"���11
����"���	��.�.�����������.��
�,���"����"��	�����"�������
����%����
������������
�%���1�����
,��,
!��"�
1�
��
������"��������
1�
��
���1����
����.��
���
7�����������"%�����"���11
����������.��.��
�,����"����"����
����
��
����
�8��1����
����.��
���
7�����������"���������"���	����
1��"����.7����
�����
����
�������		��"����-�0�������"��
����������%���,��.���/��
!�"�����	��������"�������1��������1����%�/"����1���
.��-9��
���������������
����
�������
���������-���
��
�����!��������$
����,��
1��"����	����
���������"���,����������	�
�
!���/��	�����������-�2����$��	��%���
��
����!��������$
���
1����11
����������.���.��
�,�������1��"��1����/
!:5�6 �"��	�����"�����/��	�����
�������	�
!�����������������
��
��������.������.��
�,���"�	�����
������������
���!�
����"���11
����������"��-5.6 �"��	�����
����	�.����1�����
!����
����.��
���
7�����������"�/
�"������/��	�����
��
�������.������.��
�,���"��	�����
�������������-;��
8��%�	��"��%����8
�8������"��������1��"��"���%���8�����	
������	��"
.
���%��������$
!���
������������$
�����������1��������1�����
��7���
1
��- "�8��"��������������	��"
.
���%��������$
!����
������������$
�����������1��������1�����
�7���
1
��-�"�������1��������1������!�
�����	�����/"��	���������������!������"
����1*"�����1�
�	��"
.
���-<"��1���
.��%��11
������"�����
����
�����������	��������

���������.��
����
�����
��1�����	����/"��"���.�����.7�������
7����������
!�1�����"�������1��������1����-=''-4-(���;>??�9@A����?��2�?���?B9@A�BC>9 #C;;"����1
����������1��������,
!�,�"
����������������11���
,�-�9��
�������������"���
�����
����������%��
��.�
!��"����
,����1���,�"
��������
��������"��	����
���1���"�������.����������*����"���11
���-D ?11
������"�������,�������1��"��	��"��1����		����"
!�,�"
����
�������1��
��"��!
!��"�
�1
����������"��,�"
�����������1�
�������	���-D ?11
������"�������
���
�����������������
�����,��
����"��	��"��1����		����"
!,�"
���������������"�
���/��$
!����
���������-D ?11
������"���������"����������	�����1�����,
!��,�"
����
��������	������
��.����"��,�"
���-D ?11
������"��������
��"��!����1
�������������,
!�,�"
�������
�������	����/"���"���������"���������.���������,�
��.�������,�����"���"����-D ?11
������"��������
��"��!����1
������1��������,
!�,�"
����/"���"����������"���������.��������,�
��.�������,�����"��	�������"����-



�����������	
������
�����
�����	�����������������
��������������������

 �	��
!"��#�$
	��%�## �&'()*')*(+%������
!"��������,��-��.�
�"���/
�"�	���
��
��.�������������	
������
�����
����	������ 0����1�2�����3�)4

5 611
��������������"�����������,
!�,�"
����������$
!����
����������%�/"���"����
,����*�������	�����������!��
!���"����/
�"��"��
�������������!�����.��
���
7�����������"����"������������"���������.���������,�
��.�������,�����"���"����-8''-9-&���:��;<;=�>?6�>�
��"��!
!���1
������1����"��	��	�����1���@/��
!��"��A�
��	��"
.
���-BCCDE���FGHIFJKLM�JNG�OPG�IQ�QIFRG��������1�1�����.�������.����1��"
����	��������"����.������������	���	���%����	��������������������
����		��	�
������	���%���	��
!����"���������1��"��
�
���-��"���11
�����"�������
��������"��1�������	����
,������/"��"�*�"��.��
�,����"�������1�1�����/���������.��������"���
����������->�		����������	�����/
���.�����	������.��	�������/"������	������/"��1�����
�������.����"����11
���-�611
�����"�,��������������	��������	���
���1�����S�/�����"��-����	��
�����	����%�
����
,���1������		����������	����%�
,��,
!��"�����������
���1��������11����������.����,
�/�������		��,���.������	��,
����	�
�������"����	������!�
!��11�����-8''-4-(���;6�<2< ��<6;��6�>0�T�U<>6�>>�	��,
�������
1
���
���"����.�����������������	����
��.���1����/
!��"���		�
���
���1�1�����
����1��"��1����/
!��
����������VW�X �"���		�
���
�����������,
�
.���
7���-W.X �"���		�
���
��/������������������.����11
����������������"����"��
�
,
���������"�,��$	��
�����������"������������
����1���-W�X �"��
�
,
�������.7����������"��1��������	��
����1�
7����������
�
!�	�
-W�X �"��
�
,
�����
�
������
�������	�������
�
!��
�-W�X ����		�
���
���1������������,
��������1
���
����
�
���8'Y����8'+V(- �����������"���
�	����/��	��&-  "��
�����!����W6 �>	���X8- ><�>����7���
��9-  ��������T�����
����:��	��W������
,��
��/"��"����11���
,�������XW1X ����		�
���
���1���������
����,
�����"����"��"����11������"��:���-W!X �"��
�
,
�������.7����������"��1�����/����������������
���-W"X ��
�
,
�����/��������S����S
�S��-W
X ���11
�������/�*��	�������1
���������
!��"��	��1��������1�"
�*"������
��������1��%�����
�����S�����	�����
�����������W�"�����	����
����������������������%��"���11
����
��/
�"
	����
����
!"���1��"�����	���X-W7X ��
�
,
���������!�������1��"���.�,��"�����������-



�����������	
������
�����
�����	�����������������
��������������������

 �	��
!"��#�$
	��%�## �&'()*')*(+%������
!"��������,��-��.�
�"���/
�"�	���
��
��.�������������	
������
�����
����	������ 0����1�2�����3�)4

5''-6-&����7�8��9:;��8� �#928�:9���7�����7:��82�<0=�9 7�"�������������!�������"�����"��
>������
!����"�����������"����������?�
����.���"���	��������1�<���
���@�8<A���!���
!������11
���3
,��,����"���
!�����
�
�����
,��,
!�����1�1�����������
!�
����
����.��
���
B����
���������������1��/����������"���8<������?�
����.�;�,������ ����C�(&6&6-&-5''-6-5���7��#8D77=�EF8�0=7�28� 7�EF9#7�8:���=�7 9�#��==9;:�7:�E"������������
�����	������"����������1�1����������1
���
��"
��	��
��%��"�������1�1���������.����	�������������������
�����	��,
�������
,���
!�����
�����������/
�"��"
��	��
��-E"���/������������������
����11
������������	����
������
!���������
���������
����!����������
3�!�������G�1�����
��"��	��1��������1���/��1�����������
,
�
��%��������	��
�����	��,
����"����������.��	�����-HIIJK���LMNOPQR�PSTUONMVQWOST�XSRRSYOTZ�Q�[UM�SX�XSVPM��
������.��G
!�����������%��������������	���
.���������"���
����������%����
�������
������"����.���.��
���1������	�����/"���$"
.
����
!���1�	"��
�����
������%�/"��"��������
���,
�
.��
B���%��$	������������	��
���1�
B����������
�
!�	�
%����/"��/����������������
���-���
�
,
������$"
.
�
!��
!���1�	"��
�����
��������1���������������"�����.�����
���������
�������
��"�*�"�����.�����
��������������-�������	���"���11
���\��

�
��������������1��"������������$�����1��"����.B���\��
B��
��%���
�������
�������������
����1��$��
��
��.��1
���	������%�	������
��%�"��	
�������11������
�������11�����"��B�
�-�91�������"�
�
,
�������1��������
���������
�%����"�����1������"����.�1���������������
�����������	�������%�/"��,���	����
��.��%��"�����.��/
�������.�����"���11
������*������
����	������-�91���������
!�
��������1��"��������������
���,
�/�/
�"��"�
�
,
����%������1������"�����.��
�������
��"��������
!%�
1�	���
.��-�"���3�������	��,
������%�
1��"���3�������	��,
����
������,�
��.��%��"��	�
�����"���
!��11
����"�����������"������	�����	��,
�
!����
����������������
,
!����������1���	�����1����/
!��������1�1�����
��
1�������"����"��	�����/�����.B���������1����-��"
����
1
���
���"����
������������
	�
���1��"��1������������������"����
������������"���11
����������.���.��
�,���/����.��	����
�����1����������
�����
�G������"����.B����@�-!-%�	����!�������!!��%��$�������!
���
�%
�	�
�������	
���
�A-�������/"���$"
.
���$��������!
���
�%��,
������
����
�����.�"�,
���������	�
����.���	��1����/���
!%��$������
��������!�"�.������"�
��	"��
�����"�������
��
������
�	��,
����������	�
@�����
�����������]�$�
�������
�
��̂A%����/"����?�
�����	����������	"��
������������/
�"�����
	���11
��������.��.���!"�������������%�����.�������
���������
�G��1�����������"-� �����
,��,
!�"����	�������"�����.�����
���������
��������!��
��-�811
�����/"��������.������	��������
��������!�����"�������?��������
�������
����������������	����
��.������"�,�����
���	����������!�����.��
1��		��	�
���-



�����������	
������
�����
�����	�����������������
��������������������

 �	��
!"��#�$
	��%�## �&'()*')*(+%������
!"��������,��-��.�
�"���/
�"�	���
��
��.�������������	
������
�����
����	������ 0����1�2�����3�))

45567���89:;<=>8?<�<;8:?@8>A>B>CD���
,��,�����	��,
�����"��������	�������"��������1�����	�����������1�1����-��"����	��,
���
���$	�������������"��1����/
!EF�G H.��
��"��.��
��1�����1�����"��
,��,����11
����-��.����������!��
���1��
�����������$����
,��1����%��"
��/
���.�����
������������
���������
��"����������������1����
��-F.G I������"������
J�����	���
��������$��
�������������-F�G K"��	���
.��%���	���������.��
������������
���,
�/�/
�"��"����.J�����	��/"���1����/����		�
��-��"
��
���,
�/��"��������.�����������
��"��	��������1��11
�����/"��/���
,��,���
���
!�1����-��L1��"
��
���,
�/�
�����������/
�"�����"��	�����"�,
!�,������
��/�
,���"
�*�"����
������
!"��%��"��1����/
!��"�����		��E(- �"���������1��"��
���,
�/��"��������.��������
M������
�������
�������������
�
����"��!��-&- �"��������
!��"�����.����,�����������"���
��"����������������1����"�������11�����
,���
!��
�-N- �"��������
!��1��"��
���,
�/��"�����.���
��
��������O���1��������
����
�����	����
���1����
,
���
�
!��
��"����$	
���-F�G H������

�
������
��������������"���.������	���������1
�����
��"���.����������%�������"���	"���!��	"��"�,��.�����O���1����������
,��,
!�,
�
.���
J����������	��
��1�	�
%����/��������,������	"���!��	"���1��
J����������-��"����	"���!��	"���"�����.�����
�����
������	����
���1����
,
���
�
!��
��"����$	
���-F�G L���
1�����/
�����������"�������1�1����-�L���,
�/�����������/
���������������1��
����
��
��"�������1�1�����
,���
!��
�-F1G ��,
�/��"��	���
�F�G��1��"���$��2��$�,
����	����

!�����"�������1�1�������*�������!��
��1��
�������-F!G ��,
�/�����		��,����������������	����-L��"���,����"������
,��,�����	��,
����
����.���������	�������"��������1���
�
����
,��,
!�"����	�������		�
���
���1�1����%��"����	��,
����
����
����$	������������	�������������1��"��.�,��
���������
�����������	���
�-��"��
,���
!��
��/
���.������������
���0����1�2����L,���
!��
���"��O�
�����������
,�����/�������-K"��	����
���%���	��,
�����/"������1��������/
������"�������1�1�����.�����"����11
����
��!
,���
����
���"���������.��
�����������1������"����11
��������	�����1�����	�������"�������11����%�������"�
���"�����	��
.
�
����1����
,��,�����	��,
���-�2���"������%�
,��,�����	��,
��������11
������"������������	�����
1��������"����11
����P�����
,
�
��/
������P����������1�/"��������������
!��"��
�
���������"��/
������	���
����"��
��!�
����1��"�������1�1�����
,���
!��
�-0����1�2�����L,���
!��
����	�����/
���.��1��/�����������,
�/����"��!"��"���"�
��1�������-I��"���,
�/���
��"��	�������/
�����O����������
��
��������/"��"����"�������1�1�����/��J���
1
�.�������3J���
1
�.��-



�����������	
������
�����
�����	�����������������
��������������������

 �	��
!"��#�$
	��%�## �&'()*')*(+%������
!"��������,��-��.�
�"���/
�"�	���
��
��.�������������	
������
�����
����	������ 0����1�2�����3�)4

5''-)-(���067�82�28� 7�9:;76�9<��98:%��8 0�7:���98:%��:���7;97=0����1�1����������.������������
���	��
�����	���������,
�/���.������	��,
����/"��/������
�������
,��,���
��"��
�
���-�"��1����/
!�����!��
������	����������/
����$	��
���,�����1�1���������"�����	���
,����	���
!%
,���
!��
�%����������
�%������,
�/���>�
������-��9�
�����/
���.������!��
?������#�,���(%#�,���&%�#�,���5%����#�,���@-ABCBD�EF�GHI�J�KBLHMIJNDB�OPB�HQ�RHMSBF#�,���(�9�
��������������TU�V 6�.W��������/���"
�*"�����1����.�������"��%���������%���*���"����11��-���"�����	����11����������
�����%�����"���11
�����
���������1���������,����������
�����-���"���11
����
���������1�����
��"���.������1����
�����-U.V :�����	����
W����������	��
���1�
W�����������
������
��/
�"��11
���-U�V :������!��
���1��
���������!�
����11
���%���!���
!�1����-U�V 811
����.�����������/������
,�����
����
���������%�	���	��
��-U�V 811
�������������1�1����/
!T(- ���1���
����	���������*���,��.��
?��
�&- ��67�*##9�����	������U�����
,��
�V5- ���/*��	������1
�����%�.��������	������������������������#�,���(�9�
������"�����.������������.�����11
����
����		��	�
����	��
�����	���%��
���
�%2
����9���,
�/%���*��� ��6�����-��6�	��,
�����/
�����,
�/�	��
�����	���������
,���1����		��,��-ABCBD�XF�OPB�HQ�RHMSB#�,���&�9�
��������������TU�V :�����	����
W����������	��
���1�
W�����������
������
��/
�"��11
���-U.V :������!��
���1��
���������!�
����11
���%���!���
!�1����-U�V 811
����.�����������/������
,�����
����
���������%�	���	��
��-U�V 811
�������������1��"��1����/
!�1������	�
��TU�V  ������"����*	��������	�
���		�
���
�U.V #�,���!�U�V <��.U�V ����/�
!"�U�V ��Y���/��"���
���3����
��U��1����1���
�	���VU1V ;�"
����	����
��/
�"�������
�
�



�����������	
������
�����
�����	�����������������
��������������������

 �	��
!"��#�$
	��%�## �&'()*')*(+%������
!"��������,��-��.�
�"���/
�"�	���
��
��.�������������	
������
�����
����	������ 0����1�2�����3�)+

4!5 2
���������/*��	������.������1
���%����	���������������
,��,�����	��,
����/
������	�������"�������������������0����1�2�����6,���
!��
�%
����
!���7
!�����������1�����"�����	�������/
������%������7
!�	"������1��"��
,��,��	���
��-��61��"��
�
����1
����"��	����������1�����#�,���&�
�
���%��"����	��,
����/
������������		�
��.��������
��������������������"������	������0����1�2�����6,���
!��
�� "��7�
��-8�	��,
��������������������7��/
���������������1����1
���������
����	�������������"�1����/
!��
���������9�����11
�������
�������
����	����������������
���*��������������.:��������!�����1������
��������	����
����3��
�
��������
��4
-�-�;(;'����;()'������
�5%��������1��"��1����/
!����
�
����������94�5 �"���11
�������������1������	�
����
�
��������"��1����/
!9�!��.%�"���%���,���!�%���*��.���/�
!"�-4.5 <����.:����
:����������	��
���1�
:�����������
������
��/
�"��11
���-4�5 <������!��
���1��
���������!�
����11
���%���!���
!�1����-4�5 =11
����.���������������������"�������1�1����-4�5 �"���
����.���1����"��1
���������
����	�������
���.��
��->?@?A�BC�DE?�FG�HFIJ?#�,���K�6�
��������������94�5 L�����"�,����"��/
���.��������
1
��������#�,���&%��$��	������1�������1��"��1����/
!�		��9(- 8��	����
:����������	��
���1�
:�����������
������
��/
�"��11
���-&- ����!��
���1��
���������!�
����11
���%���!���
!�1����-K- =11
����.�����������/���������
,��������
!������1�1����-4.5 �"�������1�1�����
��#�,���K�
1��"���11
�������������1��"��1����/
!�1������	�
��9(- ����
�*1���
.�����7���/&- ��8M�����
,��
�*##6�8����
,��
�K-  "��
�����!���*��
�
��N- 6�	����L��	��8��
7����������;- �����L��	��O- ���
�����
����	�������������
!�
�
:������
,��,�����	��,
����/
������	�������"�������������������0����1�2�����6,���
!��
�%
����
!���7
!�����������1�����"�����	�������/
������-�61��"��
�
����1
����"��	���������1�����#�,���K�
�
���%��"����	��,
����/
�������������		�
��.��������
��������������������"�����	������0����1�2�����6,���
!��
�� "��7�
��-��"����	��,
����/
�����������	�������0����1�2����



�����������	
������
�����
�����	�����������������
��������������������

 �	��
!"��#�$
	��%�## �&'()*')*(+%������
!"��������,��-��.�
�"���/
�"�	���
��
��.�������������	
������
�����
����	������ 0����1�2�����3�4'

5,���
!��
����	���������
,��1�����,
�/��"���!"��"��0����1�2�������,
�/�	������-��0����1�2����
,��,
!�	��
�����
���/
���.�����������������,
�/������
�
������	������
���6(4-78987�:;�<=8�>?�@8ABCD�E>FG8#�,���H�5�
��������������IJ�K 0����1�1
�����%��11
����
,��,����"���
!J.K L�����1������
M�����������������"�������
����.��
���
N������
,��,�����	��,
����/
������	�������"������-���"��
�
����/
���.��
,���
!����%����������%�����,
�/���
���"������������
���6('-6''-)-&���O�� P� L���Q�R���RS�LQS5�5#5�T��/���"����������/
�����,
�/��"��0����1�2�����5,���
!��
����	����������������	�
����/
�"�"
��	��
�������"���������

!�
�������������������-Q��"
!�
��"��	��
���	����������"��/���"����������1������U�
�
!��"�������	��,
�������	������0����1�2�����5,���
!��
����	����1������
�
����
,��,
!�1����-VWWXY���Z[\]̂]̂_L11
������/
��������
,������������

!������"
���	��
���J������

���K������������������"�
��M�/���!��������������
!-VWWX̀���<ab�cE�Ec[db�\̂ \7ea]a���������������%��"��L	����
������������	���� "
�1��"�����	��	�����������
����	�����������11�����
�
����-��"����	�����"�����.����.�
���������"�� "
�1��1����
��%��"��L11
����1��"��5��	�������
������
���%�����"����������
��� 
�
f����,
�/������-��"����	�����"������������
��"�������1��11
����%����	���������������.���%�����"�����
�����IJ�K �"��
���
1
���
���1����������
��"�������1�1�����.�����.���-J.K ���

!����������������
��-J�K RU�
	�������������������
��-J�K ���
�����,
�
������������
��-



Policy

346
Bay Area Rapid Transit Police Department

BART PD Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2017/07/19, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Bay Area Rapid Transit Police
Department

Media Relations - 246

Media Relations
346.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
This policy provides guidelines for media releases and media access to scenes of disasters,
criminal investigations, emergencies and other law enforcement activities.

346.2   RESPONSIBILITIES
Media and Public Affairs (M&PA) should handle any police case with the media that impacts
system operation, such as any emergency or incident that cause train delays or system closures.
That does not preclude authorized department representatives from dealing with the media and/
or M&PA on information that is law-enforcement sensitive and/or could compromise an ongoing-
police investigation.

District policy requires that M&PA be the clearinghouse for all information that is given to the news
media. This will be strictly adhered to by the department and requires a timely effort by Command
Officers and Sergeants to advise M&PA, the Chief and the Deputy Chiefs of any police dealings
with reporters.

Only police managers may prepare a department News Release form. This form is located on the
G:\drive under New Police Forms/News Release. Before a news release is e-mailed, faxed, or
otherwise distributed to news providers, it must be reviewed and approved by M&PA, even during
non-business hours. Contact information for M&PA approvers is available in the Communication
Center.

If reasonable attempts to reach an M&PA employee, and a public-safety concern demands a
speedy distribution of a department news release, the Command Officer, Sergeant, or supervisor
may send it to media sources, but he/she will also e-mail a copy of the department news release
to M&PA, the Chief and the Deputy Chiefs.

The aforementioned procedure does not preclude department managers from granting or
authorizing interviews to reporters, especially for an ongoing case where a public-safety concern
exists. As soon as practicable following such interviews, an e-mail or voice message will be sent
to M&PA, the Chief and the Deputy Chiefs. The message must include: who was interviewed; by
whom and the news agency; and a synopsis of what was disclosed to the reporter(s).

Compliance with this policy will ensure that M&PA, the Chief and the Deputy Chiefs are apprised
of any communication that the department has with news reporters, so that M&PA and the
department are on the same page as to what has been disclosed to the media and what information
should not be divulged.

346.2.1   MEDIA REQUEST
Any media request for information or access to a law-enforcement situation shall be referred to the
designated department-media representative, or if unavailable, to the first available supervisor.
Prior to releasing any information to the media, employees shall consider the following:



Bay Area Rapid Transit Police Department
BART PD Policy Manual

Media Relations

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2017/07/19, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Bay Area Rapid Transit Police
Department

Media Relations - 247

• In situations involving multiple law-enforcement agencies, every reasonable effort should
be made to coordinate media releases with the authorized representative of each involved
agency prior to the release of any information by this department.

• Under no circumstance should any member of this department make any comment(s) to the
media regarding any law-enforcement incident not involving this department without prior
approval of the Chief of Police.

346.3   MEDIA ACCESS
Authorized members of the media shall be provided access to scenes of disasters, criminal
investigations, emergencies and other law enforcement activities subject to the following
conditions (Penal Code § 409.5(d)):

(a) The media representative shall produce valid press credentials that shall be prominently
displayed at all times while in areas otherwise closed to the public.

(b) Media representatives may be prevented from interfering with emergency operations and
criminal investigations.

1. Reasonable effort should be made to provide a safe staging area for the media that
is near the incident and that will not interfere with emergency or criminal investigation
operations. All information released to the media should be coordinated through the
department Media and Public Affairs Manager or other designated spokesperson.

2. Whenever the presence of media or other aircraft pose a threat to public or officer
safety or significantly hampers incident operations, the field supervisor should
consider requesting a Temporary Flight Restriction (TFR). All requests for a TFR
should be routed through the Watch Commander. The TFR request should include
specific information regarding the perimeter and altitude necessary for the incident
and should be requested through the appropriate control tower. If the control tower
is not known, the Federal Aviation Administration should be contacted (14 CFR
91.137).

(c) No member of this department who is under investigation shall be subjected to media visits
or interviews without the consent of the involved employee (Government Code § 3303(e)).

(d) Media interviews with individuals who are in custody should not be permitted without the
approval of the Chief of Police and the express consent of the person in custody.

A tactical operation should be handled in the same manner as a crime scene, except the news
media shall be permitted within the outer perimeter of the scene, subject to any restrictions as
determined by the supervisor in charge. Department members shall not jeopardize a tactical
operation in order to accommodate the news media. All comments to the media shall be
coordinated through a supervisor or the Media and Public Affairs Manager.



Bay Area Rapid Transit Police Department
BART PD Policy Manual

Media Relations

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2017/07/19, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Bay Area Rapid Transit Police
Department

Media Relations - 248

346.3.1   PROVIDING ADVANCE INFORMATION
To protect the safety and rights of officers and other persons, advance information about planned
actions by law enforcement personnel, such as movement of persons in custody or the execution
of an arrest or search warrant, should not be disclosed to the news media, nor should media
representatives be invited to be present at such actions except with the prior approval of the Chief
of Police.

Any exceptions to the above should only be considered for the furtherance of legitimate law
enforcement purposes. Prior to approving any exception the Chief of Police will consider, at
minimum, whether the release of information or presence of the media would unreasonably
endanger any individual, prejudice the rights of any person or is otherwise prohibited by law.

346.4   SCOPE OF INFORMATION SUBJECT TO RELEASE
The department will maintain a daily information log of significant law enforcement activities
that shall be made available, upon request, to media representatives through the Administrative
Services bureau. This log will generally contain the following information:

(a) The date, time, location, case number, type of crime, extent of injury or loss, city of residency
and names of individuals (except confidential informants) involved in crimes occurring within
this jurisdiction unless the release of such information would endanger the safety of any
individual or jeopardize the successful completion of any ongoing investigation

(b) The date, time, location, case number, name, birth date and charges for each person
arrested by this department unless the release of such information would endanger the
safety of any individual or jeopardize the successful completion of any ongoing investigation

(c) The time and location of other significant law enforcement activities or requests for service
with a brief summary of the incident subject to the restrictions of this policy and applicable law

At no time shall identifying information pertaining to a juvenile arrestee, victim or witness be
publicly released without prior approval of a competent court.

Information concerning incidents involving certain sex crimes and other offenses set forth in
Government Code § 6254(f) shall be restricted in accordance with applicable statutory provisions.

Identifying information concerning deceased individuals shall not be released to the media until
notification of next of kin or otherwise cleared through the Coroner's Office.

Any requests for copies of related reports or additional information not contained in this log shall
be referred to a records bureau clerk, or if unavailable, to the records bureau supervisor. Such
requests will generally be processed in accordance with the provisions of the Public Records Act
(Government Code § 6250, et seq.)

346.4.1   RESTRICTED INFORMATION
It shall be the responsibility of the authorized employee dealing with media requests to ensure
that restricted information is not inappropriately released to the media by this department. When



Bay Area Rapid Transit Police Department
BART PD Policy Manual

Media Relations

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2017/07/19, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Bay Area Rapid Transit Police
Department

Media Relations - 249

in doubt, authorized and available legal counsel should be obtained. Examples of such restricted
information include, but are not limited to:

(a) Confidential peace officer personnel information (See Policy Manual § 1026)

1. The identities of officers involved in shootings or other major incidents may only be
released to the media pursuant to consent of the involved officer or upon a formal
request filed and processed in accordance with the Public Records Act.

(b) Copies of traffic collision reports (except to the involved parties and their authorized
representatives) (Vehicle Code § 20012)

(c) Criminal history information

(d) Information that would tend to endanger the safety of any individual or jeopardize the
successful completion of any ongoing investigation

(e) Information pertaining to pending litigation involving this department

(f) Information obtained in confidence

(g) Any information that is otherwise privileged or restricted under state or federal law.
(Government Code § 6254(k)).



 

 

 

 

MONTHLY REPORT 
June 2018 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Issue date: July 9, 2018 



JUNE 2018         PAGE 2 OF 6 

 

This report is filed pursuant to the BART Citizen Oversight Model, Chapter 1-05 (A), which requires 
the Office of the Independent Police Auditor (OIPA) to submit reports to the BART Police Citizen 
Review Board (BPCRB). This report provides information for the period June 1, 2018 through  
June 30, 2018.1  
 
The Quantitative Report includes all complaints received and administrative investigations initiated 
by both OIPA and the BART Police Department (BPD) Internal Affairs Bureau. 
 

QUANTITATIVE REPORT 

 
 

Cases Filed2 
 

Open Cases3 

 
OIPA 

Investigations 
Concluded4 

 
Cases 

Appealed to 
OIPA5 

 
Cases 

Appealed 
by BPCRB6 

June 2017 11 44 1 0 0 
July 2017 13 48 0 0 0 

August 2017 12 35 0 0 0 
September 2017 12 31 1 0 0 

October 2017 11 33 0 0 0 
November 2017 11 32 0 1 0 
December 2017 9 34 1 0 0 

January 2018 7 32 0 0 0 
February 2018 10 34 0 1 0 

March 2018 6 35 1 0 0 
April 2018 13 49 0 0 0 
May 2018 6 51 1 0 0 
June 2018 10 56 0 0 0 

 
 

TYPES OF CASES FILED 

Citizen Complaints (Formal) 7 

Informal Complaints7 3 

Administrative Investigations 0 

TOTAL 10 
 

CITIZEN COMPLAINTS RECEIVED PER DEPARTMENT8 

OIPA 0 

BART Police Department 7 

TOTAL 7 

 

 

 

 



JUNE 2018         PAGE 3 OF 6 

 

COMPLAINTS/INVESTIGATIONS INITIATED DURING REPORTING PERIOD 

During June 2018, 7 Citizen Complaints (Formal) were received by BPD: 

Complaint # 
(IA Case #) Nature of Complaint Action Taken Days Elapsed Since 

Complaint Filed 

1 
(IA2018-042) 

Employee #1: 
• Force 
• Performance of Duty 

BPD initiated an 
investigation. 38 

2 
(IA2018-043) 

Officers #1-2: 
• Force 
• Conduct Unbecoming 
 
Officer #2: 
• Bias-Based Policing 

BPD initiated an 
investigation. 

33 

3 
(IA2018-044) 

Officer #1: 
• Conduct Unbecoming an 

officer 

BPD initiated an 
investigation. 31 

4 
(IA2018-045) 

Officer #1: 
• Arrest or Detention 

BPD initiated an 
investigation. 31 

5 
(IA2018-046) 

Officers #1-2: 
• Bias-Based Policing 
• Conduct Unbecoming an 

Officer 

BPD initiated an 
investigation. 

30 

6 
(IA2018-049) 

Officers #1-3: 
• Conduct Unbecoming an 

Officer 
 
Officer #3: 
• Policy/Procedure 

BPD initiated an 
investigation. 

21 

7 
(IA2018-051) 

Officer #1: 
• Policy/Procedure 

BPD initiated an 
investigation. 11 

During June 2018, 1 Administrative Investigation was initiated by BPD: 

Investigation # 
(IA Case #) Nature of Investigation Action Taken Days Elapsed Since 

Investigation Initiated 

1 
(IA2018-040) 

Officer #1: 
• Policy/Procedure 

BPD initiated an 
investigation. 26 

During June 2018, 3 Informal Complaints were received by BPD: 

Complaint # 
(IA Case #) Nature of Allegations Action Taken Days Elapsed Since 

Investigation Initiated 
1 
(IA2018-047) 
 

Employee #1: 
• Conduct Unbecoming 

BPD initiated an 
investigation. 26 

2 
(IA2018-048) 
 

Employee #1: 
• Conduct Unbecoming 

BPD initiated an 
investigation. 26 

3 
 (IA2018-050) 

Officers #1-2: 
• Conduct Unbecoming 

BPD initiated an 
investigation. 24 



JUNE 2018         PAGE 4 OF 6 

 

COMPLAINTS/INVESTIGATIONS CONCLUDED DURING REPORTING PERIOD 

 

During June 2018, 1 Citizen Complaint was concluded by OIPA: 

Complaint # 
 (OIPA Case #) Nature of Complaint Disposition 

Days 
Elapsed 
Since 

Complaint 
Filed 

Days Taken 
to Complete 
Investigation 

1 
(OIPA #17-42) 

Officer unlawfully 
detained subject 
based on race, and 
did not properly verify 
subject’s age. 

Officer #1: 
• Bias-Based Policing – 

Unfounded 
• Arrest or Detention – 

Exonerated 
• Policy/Procedure – 

Exonerated  

235 215 

 

During June 2018, 3 Citizen Complaints (Formal) were concluded by BPD: 

Complaint # 
(IA Case #) 

Nature of 
Complaint Disposition 

Days Elapsed 
Since 

Complaint 
Filed 

Days Taken 
to Complete 
Investigation 

1 
(IA2017-095) 

Officer improperly 
detained 
complainant, two 
officers used 
excessive force 
during detention, 
one officer failed to 
adhere to provisions 
of the Americans 
with Disabilities Act, 
and one officer 
conducted an 
improper search. 

Officers #1-2: 
• Force – Exonerated 
 
Officer #1: 
• Performance of Duty – 

Unfounded 
 
Officer #2: 
• Arrest or Detention – 

Exonerated  
 
Officer #3: 
• Search or Seizure – 

Exonerated  

233 207 

2 
(IA2017-102) 

Officer harassed 
and intimidated 
complainant. 

Officer #1: 
• Conduct Unbecoming an 

Officer – Not Sustained 
248 214 

3 
(IA2017-117) 

Officer improperly 
arrested 
complainant and did 
not properly 
investigate the 
underlying incident. 

Officer #1: 
• Arrest or Detention – 

Unfounded 
• Performance of Duty – 

Unfounded 

193 166 

 



JUNE 2018         PAGE 5 OF 6 

 

During June 2018, 1 Informal Complaint was addressed by BPD: 

Complaint # 
 (IA Case #) Nature of Complaint Disposition 

Days 
Elapsed 
Since 

Complaint 
Filed 

Days Taken 
to Complete 
Investigation 

1 
(IA2018-048) 

Employee operated a 
vehicle in an unsafe 
manner. 

Employee #1: 
• Conduct Unbecoming – 

Supervisor Referral9 26 6 

 

DISCIPLINE ISSUED DURING REPORTING PERIOD 

No discipline was issued during the month of June 2018. 

ADDITIONAL NOTES 

In accordance with the BART Citizen Oversight Model (Model), OIPA investigates certain complaints, 
conducts complainant-initiated appeals, and also monitors and/or reviews complaint investigations 
conducted by BPD. Though potentially work-intensive, some complaint investigation reviews are 
completed informally, with any concerns being addressed through a conference with BPD’s Internal 
Affairs investigators. Noting the various kinds of work that OIPA undertakes with regard to 
complaints and investigations, the following chart includes some of the pending cases in which OIPA 
is involved as of the end of this reporting period. 

Investigations Being Conducted 6 

Complainant-Initiated Appeals 1 

BPD-Initiated Appeals 0 

Investigations Being Monitored 17 

Investigations Reviewed During Current Month 10† 
†This number does not include all OIPA reviews, as OIPA commonly looks at a variety of cases in the Internal Affairs database to 
obtain updates on both pending and completed investigations. 
 
The Model provides that OIPA shall have authority to require follow-up investigation into any citizen 
complaint or allegation that is handled by BPD. The OIPA Monthly Report will reflect information 
regarding monitored cases with detail not to exceed that which is allowable under state law.10 
OIPA reviewed one BPD investigation during the reporting period which resulted in a request that 
BPD examine and investigate an additional allegation. BPD agreed to review and revise the 
investigative report to include the additional allegation. 
 

1 In addition to reporting on complaints received by the BART Police Department, the Citizen Oversight Model requires 
reporting on all complaints received by the “Citizen Board, Office of the District Secretary, and other District departments.” 
As complaints received by the BART Police Citizen Review Board are customarily directed to OIPA for further action, such 
complaints are included in the Quantitative Report above; OIPA is also made aware of additional complaints about the 
BART Police Department by the Office of the District Secretary or other District departments. 

2  This number includes all Citizen Complaints filed against members of the BART Police Department, as well as 
Administrative Investigations generated internally by BART Police Department members (as opposed to being filed by a 

                                                                 



JUNE 2018         PAGE 6 OF 6 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                               

citizen). This number also includes previously completed cases that have been re-opened during the current reporting 
period. 

3 This number indicates all investigations that are open as of the end of the reporting period. It includes Citizen Complaints 
(regardless of whether the investigation is being conducted by OIPA, the BART Police Department, or both) and 
Administrative Investigations. 

4 This number includes all cases completed by OIPA during the reporting period for which OIPA’s findings are required by 
the BART Citizen Oversight Model to be submitted to the BART Police Citizen Review Board. It therefore includes 
independent investigations, as well as reviews of completed BART Police Department investigations initiated via appeal 
from a complainant. Unless otherwise noted, it does not include reviews of BART Police Department investigations initiated 
at the discretion of OIPA, which happen commonly and do not always generate a formal report; it also does not include 
reviews conducted by OIPA of complaint investigations where the complaint was filed with OIPA but did not fall under 
OIPA’s investigative jurisdiction. 

5 This number refers to appeals filed with OIPA by complainants who have been issued the findings of the BART Police 
Department’s internal investigation into their complaint regarding on-duty incidents. OIPA has a responsibility to review 
such appeals pursuant to the BART Citizen Oversight Model, Chapter 1-04 (E). 

6 This number refers to all appeals initiated by the BART Police Citizen Review Board after receiving and reviewing the 
findings issued by OIPA in a given case. The routes of all such appeals are described in detail in the BART Citizen Oversight 
Model, Chapter 1-04 (B) (iv-v). 

7 The BART Police Department defines an Informal Complaint as, “A comment on the actions of a Department employee, 
where the reporting party expressly states that he or she does not feel that the matter should be formally investigated 
with the understanding that an Informal Complaint does not hold the potential to result in disciplinary action against the 
employee.” (BART Police Department Policy Manual, Policy 1020.1.1(d)). 

8  It is important to note that OIPA does not separate citizen complaints it receives into “Formal” and “Informal” 
classifications. This chart reflects all citizen complaints received by OIPA and all Formal Complaints received by the BART 
Police Department. 

9 A Supervisory Referral refers to an instance involving an Inquiry or an Informal Complaint.  An assigned supervisor 
addresses the issue informally with the involved employee and documents the content of the conversation with a 
memorandum to IA. 

10 OIPA may submit recommendations to IA regarding minor clerical or record-keeping adjustments which are intended 
to maintain the integrity of the data collection and record-keeping processes at BPD. These are not considered by OIPA 
to be substantive recommendations requiring reporting herein. 


	1-Agenda BPCRB 07-09-18
	SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
	NOTICE OF MEETING AND AGENDA
	BART POLICE CITIZEN REVIEW BOARD

	July 9, 2018


	2-BPCRB Meeting Minutes 06-11-18 (Draft v2)
	4-BPD Policy 310 Draft Revision - Officer-Involved Shootings and Deaths (June 2018)
	Bay Area Rapid Transit Police Department
	310.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE
	310.2 POLICY
	310.3 TYPES OF INVESTIGATIONS
	310.4 CONTROL OF INVESTIGATIONS
	310.5 INVESTIGATION PROCESS
	310.6 CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION
	310.7 ADMINISTRATIVE INVESTIGATION
	310.8 MEDIA RELATIONS
	310.9 DEBRIEFING
	310.10   REPORTING


	5a-2016 AOT ACT Lesson Plan (1) v 92616
	5b-2017 AOT Curriculum
	5c-2018 AOT Impact Weapons Updated
	5d-2018 AOT Curriculum 4hr 1 Ver 2
	5e-2018 AOT Curriculum 4hr 2 ver 2
	5f-BART Policy 300 re Use of Force
	6-BPD Policy 346 - Media Relations
	7-OIPA Monthly Report - June 2018
	Quantitative report
	complaints/investigations initiated during reporting period
	complaints/investigations concluded during reporting period
	discipline issued during reporting period
	Additional notes


	3-BPD 2018 Monthly Reports 05 CRB & BART Watch.pdf
	Cover Sheet
	00 Industrial Sick Leave
	01 Vacancy
	02 Diversity
	03 Training
	04 UoF
	05 Citizen Complaints
	07 Internal Affairs Log
	08 Performance Measures
	09 Enforcement Contacts
	10 Parking Enforcement
	11 Warrant Arrests
	12 Detectives Assignments
	13 Detectives Closure Rate
	17 AB-716
	18a Scheduled Absence
	18a Scheduled Absence (Past)
	18b Unschedule Absence
	18b Unschedule Absence (Past)
	19 Overtime
	20 Communications Center
	21 BART Watch




